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The heightened awareness 
about climate change and its 

consequences has strengthened 
the trend of investment in green 
energy and improved efficiency 
options like cogeneration and

 harnessing waste heat to generate 

steam and power. This has created 

additional demand for energy 

saving and eco-friendly equipment 

and systems. Thermax is well 

positioned to tap into these  

opportunities in energy 

and environment 

technology solutions.
                                                                             

– from the Chairperson's Message

A GLORIOUS 
MORNING
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Auditors’ Report

To the members of Thermax Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Thermax Limited as at 31st March 2007, the relative Profit and
Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, which we have signed under reference
to this report. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003, issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956 (the “Act”), and on the basis of such checks as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above:

(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by law, so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
comply with the accounting standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Act;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors, as on 31st March 2007, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2007
from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Act; and

(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said
Accounts, together with the Notes thereon and attached thereto, give, in the prescribed manner, the information
required by the Act and also give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007;

(ii) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(iii) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For B.K. Khare & Company
Chartered Accountants

H.P. Mahajani
Place: Pune Partner
Date: May 29, 2007 (Membership no. 30168)
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even date)

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars, including quantitative details and situation,
of its fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year and the discrepancies noticed have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, a substantial part of fixed
assets has not been disposed off by the Company during the year.

2. (a) The inventory of the Company has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the Management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of
the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of records of inventory, in our opinion, the Company has maintained proper
records of inventory and the discrepancies noticed on physical verification between the physical stocks and
the book records were not material.

3. The Company has neither granted nor taken loans, secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act. As the Company has not granted/taken any loans,
secured or unsecured, to/from companies, firms etc., listed in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Act,
paragraphs 4(iii)(a) to (g) of the Order, are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory
and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. Further, during the course of our audit we have neither come
across nor have we been informed of any instance of continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid
internal control procedures.

5. (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of account, we are of the opinion that the particulars of contracts
or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Act have been entered in the register required to be maintained
under that section.

(b) In our opinion, the transactions made in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements have been made at
prices which are reasonable having regard to the market prices prevailing at the relevant time as evaluated on
the basis of quotations obtained from parties / prices charged by the Company in case of similar transactions
during the year and considering that having regard to certain items purchased / sold are of a special nature in
respect of which suitable alternative sources do not exist for obtaining comparative quotations in general.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Act and the
rules framed there under.

7. In our opinion, the Company’s present internal audit system is commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

8. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of product where, pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records has been prescribed under
Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records
maintained as aforesaid.

9. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books and records as produced
and examined by us, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues in respect of Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth tax, Service tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited by the Company during the year with the appropriate authorities.

(b) As at 31st March 2007, according to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given
to us, the following are the particulars of disputed dues on account of Sales-tax, Income-tax, Customs Duty,
Wealth tax, Service tax, Excise Duty and Cess matters that have not been deposited on account of a dispute:
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10. The Company has neither accumulated losses as at 31st March 2007, nor it has incurred any cash loss either during
the financial year ended on that date or in the immediately preceding financial year.

11. Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by the Management, in our opinion,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or to debenture holders as
at the balance sheet date.

12. The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities.

13. In our opinion, considering the nature of activities carried on by the Company during the year, the provisions of
any special statute applicable to chit fund/ nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ societies are not applicable to the Company.

14. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a dealer or trader
in securities. However, in respect of transactions relating to investment in certain securities, the Company has
maintained proper records of transactions and contracts during the year and timely entries have been made therein.
Further, such securities have been held by the Company in its own name.

15. Based on the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the
Company has given counter guarantees / corporate guarantees on behalf of its subsidiaries to the banks during the
year, are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

16. The Company has not taken any term loan during the year.
17. Based on the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the

Company, in our opinion, funds raised on short term basis have not been used for long term investments.
18. The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register

maintained under Section 301 of the Act during the year.
19. No debentures have been issued during the year.
20. The Company has not raised any money by public issue during the year.
21. During the course of our examination of the books of account carried out in accordance with the generally accepted

auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, either noticed
or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the Management.

Central Sales Tax Act
and Local Sales Tax
Acts (including
works contract)

The Central Excise
Act, 1944

Customs Act, 1962

Finance Act, 1994
(Service Tax)

ESI Act, 1948 and
Industrial Dispute Act, 1947

Sales tax including
interest and penalty,
as applicable

Excise duty including
interest and penalty,
as applicable.

Customs duty including interest
and penalty, as applicable

Service Tax including interest and
penalty, as applicable

Dues, interest and penalty as
applicable

0.025
0.002
0.182
0.041
0.254

0.608
0.077
0.057
0.039
0.008
0.086

3.867
0.495
0.110

0.155
0.309
0.736
0.051

3.838

0.228
0.029

0.631

0.321
1.747

 0.011
0.850
0.005
6.250
0.143
0.086
0.142
0.008

0.028

1992-93
2000-01
2001-02
2003-04
2004-05

1996-97
1997-98
2000-01
2001-02
2002-03
2003-04

1999-2000
2003-04
2005-06

2001-02
2003-04
2005-06
2006-07

2006-07

2005-06
2006-07

2005-06

2003-04
2005-06

1979-83
1989-91
1990-91

1998 till date
1999 till date
2000 till date
2001 till date
2005 till date

1987 to 89

Appellate Authority- upto
Commissioner’s level

Tribunal

Appellate Authority- upto
Commissioner’s level

Tribunal

Supreme Court

Appellate Authority- upto
Commissioner’s level

Tribunal

Appellate Authority- upto
Tribunal

Appellate Authority- upto
Labour Court

High Court

Name of the Nature of dues Amount under Period to Forum where the
statute dispute not yet which the dispute is pending

deposited amount relates
(Rs. Crore)

For B.K. Khare & Company
Chartered Accountants

H.P. Mahajani
Place: Pune Partner
Date: May 29, 2007 (Membership no. 30168)
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
 Sch Sch 18 As at As at

Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds:

Share Capital 1 11  23.83  23.83
Reserves & Surplus 2  555.36  454.76

 579.19  478.59
Loan Funds:

Secured Loans 3 14  —  —

—  —
Deferred Tax Liability: 9

Deferred Tax Liabilities  19.68  19.10
Deferred Tax Assets  (9.29)  (9.81)

 10.39  9.29

Total Funds Employed  589.58  487.88

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets 4 1(c)&(d)

Gross Block  279.40  243.32
Less: Depreciation  121.52  110.08

Net Block  157.88  133.24
Capital Work-in-progress  11.67  4.38

Investments 5 1(f)  577.61  417.49
Current Assets, Loans & Advances:

Inventories 6 1(g)  200.24  118.74
Contracts in Progress 8  75.32  43.54
Sundry Debtors 7  382.51  226.30
Cash & Bank Balances 8  62.47  36.11
Other Current Assets  21.92  21.54
Loans & Advances 9  186.95  86.73

 929.41  532.96
Less: Current Liabilities & Provisions:

Current Liabilities 10  1000.04  478.72
Contracts in Progress 8  30.46  65.43
Provisions 11 1(j)&26  56.59  56.24

1087.09  600.39

Net Current Assets  (157.68)  (67.43)
Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent 12 1(h)  0.10  0.20
not written off or adjusted
Total Funds Applied 589.58  487.88

Notes to Accounts 18

As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007

Sch Sch 18 Year ended Year ended
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

INCOME
Sales and Other Income 13 1(k)  2210.03  1498.00

EXPENDITURE
Materials 14  1433.59  947.92
Personnel 15  191.14  130.92
Other Expenses 16  267.38  209.76
Excise Duty (Net)  1.84  0.72
Depreciation 1(d)  18.76  15.21
Interest 17 1(l)  1.30  0.94

 1914.01  1305.47

Profit Before Tax & Extra Ordinary Items  296.02  192.53
Extra-ordinary Items of Expenses

Obligations under counter guarantees
given on behalf of subsidiary 12  (5.48)  —

Profit Before Tax  290.54  192.53
Less : Provision for Taxation 1(n)

Current Tax  99.54  63.03
Deferred Tax 9  1.10  2.36
Fringe Benefit Tax  2.10  3.89

Profit After Tax  187.80  123.25
Balance carried forward from last year  136.61  51.17
Transferred on Amalgamation  —  29.50

Profit available for appropriation  324.41  203.92

Appropriations
Interim Equity Dividend  40.51 —
Proposed Equity Dividend 30.98 40.51
Preference Dividend  —  0.92
Tax on Dividend  10.95  12.50
General Reserve  19.00  13.38
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet  222.97  136.61

 324.41  203.92

Basic / Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) - Rs. 24  15.76  9.69
[Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each]
Weighted average number of Equity Shares  11,91,56,300  11,91,56,300

Notes to Accounts 18

As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
Sch 18 As at As at

Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
37,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  75.00  75.00

 75.00  75.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
11,91,56,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each, fully paid-up 11  23.83  23.83

 23.83  23.83

SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Capital Redemption Reserve
Per Last Balance Sheet  50.34  2.68
Add: Transferred from General Reserve on redemption  —  47.66

of 6% Redeemable Preference Shares
 50.34  50.34

Share Premium Account
Per Last Balance Sheet  61.13  61.13

Capital Reserve
Per Last Balance Sheet  2.25  8.00
Less: Adjustment on Amalgamation 10  0.33  5.75

 1.92  2.25
General Reserve
Per Last Balance Sheet  200.00  208.62
Add: Transferred on Amalgamation —  25.66
Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve on  —  47.66

redemption of 6% Redeemable Preference Shares
Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss A/c 19.00  13.38

 219.00  200.00
Amalgamation Reserve
Per Last Balance Sheet  4.43  7.00
Less: Adjustment on Amalgamation 10  4.43  2.57

 —  4.43
Balance in Profit & Loss A/c  222.97  136.61

 555.36  454.76
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

SCHEDULE 4
FIXED ASSETS
(Refer Notes 1(c) & (d) of Schedule 18)

Rs. Crore

Particulars  Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

Cost Transfer of Additions/ Deductions/ Total Cost Upto Transfer Deductions/ Provisions Total As  at As  at
As at 1st Assets on Adjustments Adjustments as at 31st 31st on Adjustments during the as at 31st 31st 31st

April 2006 Amalgamation during the during the March 2007 March 2006 Amalgamation during the Year March 2007 March 2007 March 2006
Year Year Year

TANGIBLE:

A. Land - Freehold  7.36  -  -  -  7.36  -  -  -  -  -  7.36 7.36

B. Land - Leasehold*  2.29  0.83  7.97  0.03  11.06 0.08  0.14  -  0.07  0.29  10.77  2.21

C. Building  33.50  0.72  6.09 -  40.31  8.20  0.11  -  1.01  9.32  30.99  25.30

D. Plant & Machinery  125.41  -  13.54  1.87  137.08  62.66  -  1.58  7.37  68.45  68.63  62.75

E. Machinery given on Lease  0.46  -  -  -  0.46  0.43  -  -  -  0.43  0.03  0.03

F. Electrical Installation  4.88  0.02  0.56  0.04 5.42  2.71  0.01  0.01  0.41  3.12  2.30  2.17

G. Furniture & Fixtures,  53.03  -  11.23  6.22  58.04  31.26  -  5.71  6.28  31.83  26.21  21.77

Office Equipments and

Computers

H. Vehicles  12.68  -  2.11  0.70  14.09  3.02  -  0.29  1.78  4.51  9.58  9.66

INTANGIBLE:

A. Software  3.37  -  1.28  -  4.65  1.49  -  -  1.23  2.72  1.93  1.88

B. Technical Knowhow  0.35  -  0.58  -  0.93  0.23  -  -  0.61  0.84  0.09  0.12

Total  243.32  1.57  43.36  8.86  279.40  110.08  0.26  7.59  18.76  121.52  157.88  133.24

Previous Year  176.79  45.38  31.39  10.24  243.32  84.15  19.50  8.78  15.21  110.08  133.24  92.64

Capital W.I.P  11.67  4.38

* Registration / transfer of assets on Company’s name for assets acquired on amalgamation has been in progress.

Sch 18 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS

Borrowings from Banks for Working Capital 14  —  —
(including Working Capital Term Loans)

 —  —
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
As at As at

Face Value March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Rs. Crore Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 5
Investments (See note 1(f) of Schedule 18)
Non Trade (Long Term)
Government Securities
1 National Savings Certificates  0.00  0.00  0.00

[Amount Rs. 15,000 (Previous Year Rs. 15,000)]
2 50,000 (Previous year 50,000) 12.25 % GOI 2008  0.50  0.53  0.53
Units - Quoted but not Listed
3 50,99,485 (Previous Year Nil) Units of ABN AMRO

Fixed term Plan E Series 4 of ABN AMRO Asset Management  5.10  5.10  -
4 2,02,03,154 (Previous Year Nil) Units of ABN AMRO

Fixed term Plan C Series 4 of ABN AMRO Asset Management  20.20  20.20  -
5 1,01,77,548 (Previous Year Nil) Units of ABN AMRO

Fixed term Plan C Series 6 of ABN AMRO Asset Management  10.18  10.18  -
6 1,00,00,000 (Previous year 1,00,00,000) units of

Birla Fixed Term Series of Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund  10.00  10.00  10.00
7 Nil (Previous year 1,49,91,605) units of Birla Fixed

Maturity Quarterly Plan of Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund  -  -  15.00
8 Nil (Previous year 10,00,000) units of Birla Fixed

Term Plan Series A of Birla Sunlife Mutual fund  -  -  1.00
9 1,49,89,371(Previous year 20,62,059) units of Birla Cash

Plus Institutional Premium Plan of Birla Mutual Fund  14.99  15.05  2.08
10 Nil (Previous year 28,49,931) units of Birla Cash -

Institutional Plan of Birla Mutual Fund  -  -  3.07
11 Nil (Previous year 46,26,548) units of Birla Cash Plus -

Institutional Plan of Birla Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00
12 51,69,101 (Previous year 49,80,130) units of Birla Sun

Life Short Term Fund of Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund  5.17  5.19  5.00
13 50,00,000 (Previous year Nil) units of Birla Fixed Term Plan

Half Yearly Plan Series 1 of Birla Sunlife Mutual Fund  5.00  5.00  -
14 Nil (Previous year 5,00,000) units of Birla Fixed

Term Plan Series C of Birla Sunlife Mutual fund  -  -  0.50
15 Nil (Previous year 1,00,00,000) units of Chola Fixed

Maturity Plan Series -2 of Chola Mutual Fund  -  -  10.00
16 1,05,166 (Previous year 1,05,166) units of Chola Liquid

Institutional Plus Cumulative Plan of Chola Mutual Fund  0.11  0.14  0.14
17 1,84,41,787(Previous year 30,09,858) units of DBS Chola

Fixed Maturity Plan -2 Series 6 of DBS Chola Mutual Fund 18.44 18.44  3.01
18 3,51,84,656 (Previous year Nil) units of DBS Chola

Fixed Maturity Plan -3 Series 6 of DBS Chola Mutual Fund  35.18  35.18  -
19 Nil (Previous year 42,84,000) units of Chola Liquid

Institutional Plus Plan of Chola Mutual Fund  -  -  5.05
20 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of Chola Fixed Maturity

Plan Series 3 units of Chola Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00
21 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of Chola Fixed

Maturity Series of Chola Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

As at As at
Face Value March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
22 Nil (Previous year 1,00,000) units of DSPML Fixed

term of DSP Merrill Lynch Mutual Fund  -  -  10.00
23 Nil (Previous year 30,390) units of DSP Merrill Lynch

Bond Fund Retail of DSP Merrill Mutual Fund  -  -  3.04
24 Nil (Previous year 94,729) units of DSPML Liquidity

Fund of DSP Merill Lynch Mutual Fund  -  -  9.48
25 51,032 (Previous year Nil) units of DSPML Fixed term

Plan Series 1 I of DSP Merill Lynch Mutual Fund  5.10  5.10  -
26 1,00,00,000 (Previous year 1,00,00,000) units of Grindlays

Fixed Maturity -22nd Plan of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund  10.00  10.00  10.00
27 Nil (Previous year 1,01,01,400) units of Grindlays Fixed

Maturity - 19th Plan of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund  -  -  10.10
28 Nil (Previous year 1,51,41,300) units of Grindlays Fixed

Maturity -21st Plan of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund  -  -  15.14
29 Nil (Previous year 1,50,88,530) units of

HSBC Fixed Term Series 7 of HSBC Mutual Fund  -  -  15.08
30 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of HDFC

Fixed Maturity Plan of HDFC Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00
31 49,86,456 (Previous year Nil) units of

HSBC Liquid Plus Institutional Plan of HSBC Mutual Fund  4.99  5.01  -
32 Nil (Previous year 75,00,000) units of HSBC Fixed

Term Series 8 of HSBC Mutual Fund  -  -  7.50
33 2,06,85,668 (Previous year Nil) units of

HDFC Liquid Fund Premiun Plan of HDFC Mutual Fund  20.69  25.82  -
34 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of ING Vysya

Fixed Maturity Series VIII - of ING Vysya Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00
35 1,50,00,000 (Previous year Nil) units of ING Vysya

Fixed Maturity Series XXI - of ING Vysya Mutual Fund 15.00 15.00  -
36 Nil (Previous year 1,59,26,382) units of JM

Short Term Floater of JM Mutual Fund  -  -  16.01
37 Nil (Previous year 5,00,000) units of JM Fixed

Maturity Plan -YSO1 of JM Financial Mutual Fund  -  -  0.50
38 50,00,000 (Previous year 50,00,000) units of JM Fixed

Maturity Fund Series II YSA of JM Financial Mutual Fund  5.00  5.00  5.00
39 Nil (Previous year 75,00,000) units of JM Fixed Maturity

Fund Series II of JM Financial Mutual Fund  -  -  7.50
40 Nil (Previous year 81,18,993) units of JM Equity &

Derivative Fund Plan of JM Financial Mutual Fund  -  -  8.22
41 1,54,57,857 (Previous year Nil) units of JM Fixed Maturity

Fund Series IV of JM Financial Mutual Fund  15.46  15.46  -
42 Nil (Previous year 1,00,92,581) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Series XVI of Kotak Mutual Fund  -  -  10.09
43 Nil (Previous year 1,49,98,114) units of Kotak Liquid

Institutional Premium Plan of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  -  -  15.06
44 Nil (Previous year 1,50,70,933) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Plan Series XVIII of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  -  -  15.08
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

As at As at
Face Value March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
45 Nil (Previous year 15,46,349) units of Kotak Liquid

Institutional Plan of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  -  -  1.55
46 Nil (Previous year 5,00,000) units of Kotak Fixed Maturity

Plan of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  -  -  0.50
47 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Series XV of Kotak Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00
48 Nil (Previous year 50,15,844) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Plan Series 20 of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  -  -  5.02
49 3,61,13,760 (Previous year Nil) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Plan Series 8 of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  36.11  36.11  -
50 1,53,73,789(Previous year Nil) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Plan Series 2 of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  15.37  15.37  -
51 1,02,54,813 (Previous year Nil) units of Kotak Fixed

Maturity Plan Series 10 of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  10.25  10.25  -
52 51,16,298(Previous year Nil) units of Kotak Fixed Maturity

Plan Series 3 of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  5.12  5.12  -
53 4,10,000 (Previous year Nil) units of Kotak Liquid (Regular)

Plan of Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund  0.41  0.53  -
54 Nil (Previous year 1,42,21,649) units of Prudential ICICI-

Blended Plan B of Prudential ICICI Mutual Fund  -  -  14.32
55 Nil (Previous year 18,91,907) units of Prudential ICICI

Fixed Maturity Plan of Prudential ICICI Mutual Fund  -  -  1.89
56 31,31,945 (Previous year 30,57,708) units of Prudential

ICICI Blended Plan A of Prudential ICICI Mutual Fund  3.13  3.15  3.07
57 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of Prudential ICICI

Fixed Maturity Series XXVII of Prudential ICICI Mutual fund  -  -  5.00
58 3,61,85,796 (Previous year Nil) units of Prudential ICICI

Fixed Maturity Series 34 of Prudential ICICI Mutual fund 36.19 36.19  -
59 2,57,48,988 (Previous year Nil) units of Prudential ICICI Fixed

Maturity Series 35 Plan A of Prudential ICICI Mutual fund  25.75  25.75  -
60 1,51,47,746 (Previous year Nil) units of Prudential ICICI Fixed

Maturity Series 35 Plan B of Prudential ICICI Mutual fund  15.15  15.15  -
61 Nil (Previous year 1,13,60,824) units of Principal PNB Fixed

Maturity Plan of Principal Mutual Fund  -  -  11.36
62 Nil (Previous year 1,47,82,549) units of Principal

Deposit Fund of Principal Mutual Fund  -  -  15.00
63 19,15,511(Previous year Nil) units of Principal Income

Fund (Bonus Units of Principal Mutual Fund) 1.92  -  -
64 49,99,550 (Previous year Nil) units of Principal Cash

Management Fund of Principal Mutual Fund  5.00  5.00  -
65 1,50,00,000 (Previous year Nil) units of Principal

PNB Fixed Maturity Plan 34 of Principal Mutual Fund  15.00  15.00  -
66 Nil (Previous year 10,00,000) units of Reliance

Fixed Maturity Fund Annual Plan of Reliance Mutual Fund  -  -  1.00
67 Nil (Previous year 10,00,000) units of Reliance Fixed

Maturity Fund Annual Plan Series I of Reliance Mutual Fund  -  -  1.00
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68 Nil (Previous year 10,00,000) units of Reliance Fixed
Maturity Fund Annual plan Series II of Reliance Mutual Fund  -  -  1.00

69 Nil (Previous year 2,50,00,000) units of Reliance Fixed
Maturity Fund Series II of  Reliance Mutual Fund  -  -  25.00

70 Nil (Previous year 32,92,958) units of Reliance Fixed
Maturity Fund Monthly Plan XI of Reliance Mutual Fund  -  -  3.31

71 Nil (Previous year 49,98,778) units of Reliance Liquidity
Fund Plan of Reliance Mutual Fund  -  -  5.02

72 9,38,761 (Previous year 9,38,761) units of Reliance Power
Sector Fund Growth Plan of Reliance Mutual Fund  0.94  1.32  1.32

73 Nil (Previous year 9,72,838) units of Reliance Income Fund -
Retail Plan Bonus units of Reliance Mutual Fund  -  - -

74 2,57,76,726 (Previous year Nil) units of Reliance Fixed
Horizon Fund II Series II of Reliance Mutual Fund  25.78  25.78  -

75 1,00,29,649 (Previous year Nil) units of Reliance Fixed
Horizon Fund I Annual Plan Series I of Reliance Mutual Fund  10.03  10.03  -

76 1,03,61,131 (Previous year Nil) units of Reliance Fixed
Horizon Fund I Series IV of Reliance Mutual Fund  10.36  10.36  -

77 1,56,81,392 (Previous year Nil) units of Reliance Fixed
Horizon Fund II Series IV of Reliance Mutual Fund  15.68  15.68  -

78 1,50,00,000 (Previous year Nil) units of Reliance Fixed
Horizon Fund II Series VI of Reliance Mutual Fund  15.00  15.00  -

79 Nil (Previous year 1,00,38,500) units of Standard Chartered
Fixed Maturity of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund  -  -  10.03

80 Nil (Previous year 1,00,85,306) units of Standard Chartered
Liquidity Plan of Standard Chartered Mutual Fund  -  -  10.08

81 5,00,000 (Previous year 5,00,000) units of Sundaram
S.M.I.L.E. Fund Dividend Plan of Sundaram Mutual Fund  0.50  0.50  0.50

82 50,00,000 (Previous year 50,00,000) units of Sundaram
Fixed Term Plan Series 1 of Sundaram Mutual Fund  5.00  5.00  5.00

83 5,56,69,883 (Previous year Nil) units of Sundaram Fixed
Term Plan Series XXIII of Sundaram Mutual Fund  55.67  55.67  -

84 49,02,082 (Previous year Nil) units of Sundaram Money
Fund Institotional Plan of  Sundaram Mutual Fund  4.90  5.09  -

85 Nil (Previous year 50,00,000) units of Sundaram Fixed
Term Plan Series 3 of Sundaram Mutual Fund  -  -  5.00

86 1,53,28,501 (Previous Year Nil) units of SBI Debt
Fund Series - 180 days - dividend of SBI Mutual Fund  15.33  15.33  -

87 2,50,00,000 (Previous Year Nil) units of SBI Debt
Fund Series -90 days-II-Divident of SBI Mutual Fund  25.00  25.00  -

88 50,63,100 (Previous Year Nil) units of SBI Debt
Fund Series -90 days-II-Growth of SBI Mutual Fund  5.06  5.06  -

89 Nil (Previous year 1,00,00,000) units of Tata Fixed
Horizon Fund Series 5 of Tata Mutual Fund  -  -  10.00

90 Nil (Previous year 1,00,65,592) units of Tata Fixed
Horizon Fund Series 3 of Tata Mutual Fund  -  -  10.06

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

As at As at
Face Value March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

As at As at
Face Value March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
91 Nil (Previous year 29) units of Tata Liquid Plan of

Tata Mutual Fund  -  -  0.00
92 7,250 (Previous year 7,250) 6.75 % Tax Free

Unit Trust Of India 64 Bonds  0.07  0.10  0.10
Quoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)
93 2,500 (Previous year 2,500) Equity Shares of

Rs. 10/- each in Global Boards Ltd.  0.00  0.00  0.00
94 Nil (Previous year 40,462) Equity Shares of

Rs.10/- each in Recron Synthetics Ltd.  -  -  0.04
95 1,190 (Previous Year Nil) Equity Shares of Rs 10 /- each

in Indian Petrochemcials Corporation Limited
(received on amalgamation of Recron Synthetics Ltd.)  0.00  0.04  -

96 450 (Previous year 450) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each in Sudarshan Chemical Industries Ltd.  0.00  0.00  0.00

97 7,000 (Previous year 9,700) Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each in Sanghvi Movers Ltd.  0.01  0.06  0.08

Quoted Equity Shares (partly paid up)
98 1,25,000 (Previous year 1,25,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-  0.13  0.06  0.06

each Rs. 2.50 paid up in Parasrampuria Synthetics Ltd.
Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)
99 1,375 (Previous year 1,375) Equity Shares of

Rs. 20/- each in Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd.  0.00  0.00  0.00
100 17,539 (Previous Year 17,539)

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in G S L (India) Ltd.  0.02  0.00  0.00
101 10,000 (Previous Year 10,000)

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in Sicom Ltd.  0.01  0.07  0.07
Unquoted Preference Shares (fully paid up)
102 21,800 (Previous year 21,800) 18% Redeemable

Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each in
Indian Food Fermentation Ltd.  0.02  0.02  0.02

In Subsidiary Companies (fully paid up)
103 7,50,000 (Previous year 7,50,000) Equity Shares of  0.75  0.45  0.45

Rs. 10/- each in Thermax Surface Coatings Ltd.
104 15,00,000 (Previous year 15,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-  1.50  1.50  1.50

each in Thermax Engineering Construction Company Ltd.
105 Nil (Previous year 10,00,000) Equity Shares of  -  -  1.00

Rs.10/- each in Thermax Electronics Ltd. #
106 90,00,000 (Previous year 90,00,000) Equity Shares of  9.00  4.59  4.59

Rs.10/- each in Thermax Instrumentation Ltd.
107 2,00,000 (Previous year 2,00,000) Ordinary Shares of  1.17  1.17  1.17

GBP 1/- each in Thermax Europe Ltd.
108 50,000 (Previous year 50,000) Equity Shares  -  -  3.06

of Rs.10/- each in Winman Gas Ltd. #
109 Nil (Previous year 5,00,000) Equity Shares of  -  -  0.50

Rs.10/- each in Thermax Co-gen Ltd. #
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110 9,88,776 (Previous year 9,88,776) Equity Shares of  0.99  0.99  0.99
Rs.10/- each in Thermax Energy Performance Services Ltd.*

111 14,55,000 (Previous year 14,55,000) Equity Shares of  6.78  6.78  6.78
USD 1/- each in Thermax International Ltd., Mauritius

112 9,56,050 (Previous year 8,50,300) Equity Shares of Brazilian  1.57  1.57  1.35
Real 1/- each in Thermax do Brasil - Energia e Equipamentos Ltda.

113 59,33,133 (Previous year 32,16,608) Equity Shares of  3.49  3.49  1.91
Hong Kong Dollar 1/- each in Thermax Hong Kong Ltd.

114 17,47,300 (Previous year 17,47,300) 6% Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of  USD 1 /-  each with conversion  7.81  7.81  7.81
option in Thermax International Ltd., Maruitius
Application Money
Towards Shares / Units  5.45  0.89

 591.20  598.00  421.59
Provision for diminution in value of investments  20.39  4.10

 577.61  417.49
# Refer Note No. 10 of Schedule 18
* Refer Note No. 13(B) of Schedule 18

 As at March 31, 2007  As at March 31, 2006
Cost  Market Value  Cost  Market Value

Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments  564.11  573.82  389.58  393.94
Aggregate Value of Un-quoted Investments  33.89  -  32.01  -

Following investments were purchased and sold during the year :
Cost of

Name  No of units  Face Value Acquisition
Units  in Crore  Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

ABN Amro FTP Series 3 Quarterly Plan H - Monthly Dividend  0.51  5.08  5.08
ABN Amro FTP Series 4 - Quarterly Plan A - Monthly Dividend  0.51  5.08  5.08
ABN Amro  FTP Series 4 - Quarterly Plan B  1.02  10.18  10.18
Birla FMP - Series 2-Quarterly Plan  1.50  14.99  15.00
Birla FMP - Series 2-Quarterly Plan  1.50  14.99  15.00
Birla FMP - Series 2-Quarterly Plan  1.50  14.99  15.00
Birla Bond Plus Institutional - Fortnightly Dividend - Reinvestment  2.42  24.23  25.50
Birla FTP Series C Growth  0.05  0.50  0.54
DBS Chola FMP Series 3 (Quarterly Plan - II) - Dividend  1.00  10.00  10.00
DBS Chola FMP Series 3 (Quarterly Plan - II) - Cummilative  0.51  5.07  5.07
DBS Chola FMP Series 3 (Quarterly Plan III) -  Dividend  2.52  25.16  25.16
DBS Chola FMP Series 3 (Quarterly Plan IV) - Dividend  2.52  25.17  25.17
DBS Chola FMP Series 5 (Quarterly Plan - I ) - Dividend  0.50  5.00  5.00
DBS Chola FMP Series 5 (Quarterly Plan - II) - Dividend  1.53  15.33  15.33
DBS Chola FMP - Series 5 (Quarterly Plan - III) - Dividend  3.52  35.18  35.18

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

As at As at
Face Value March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Rs. Crore Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

Cost of
Name  No of units  Face Value Acquisition
Units  in Crore  Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore
DBS Chola FMP Series 4 (Quarterly Plan - II) - Dividend  1.53  15.33  15.33
DBS Chola Freedom Income STP. Inst - Monthly Dividend  0.46  4.57  5.00
DBS Chola FMP Series 3 (Quarterly Plan -II )  0.31  3.05  3.05
DBS Chola FMP Series 3 (Quarterly Plan -II Cummilative)  0.31  3.11  3.11
DBS Chola FMP Series 5 (Quarterly Plan -2 ) Dividend  0.31  3.11  3.11
DBS Chola Fixed Term Scheme Quarterly Series II Dividend  0.01  0.07  0.07
DBS Chola FMP Series 2 Quarterly Plan II Dividend  0.02  0.16  0.16
DSPML Fixed Term Plan - Series ID  0.01  5.01  5.01
DSPML Fixed Term Series 1 D Dividend  0.01  10.39  10.39
DSPML Fixed Term Series 1 E Dividend  0.01  5.08  5.08
DSPML Fixed Term Series 1 F Dividend  0.01  5.08  5.08
DSP Merrill Lynch Liquid Plus Institutional Plan - Weekly Dividend  0.01  10.09  10.10
DSP Merrill Lynch Liquid Plus Institutional Plan - Weekly Dividend  0.03  25.55  25.58
DSPML - FTP - Series 1D Dividend  0.00  3.14  3.14
DSP Merrill Lynch Liquid Plus Institutional Plan - Weekly Dividend  0.00  3.14  3.15
DSPML Fixed Term Seies 1 C Dividend  0.00  0.00  0.00
Franklin Templeton Investments  0.04  35.42  35.63
Templeton India Treasury Management Account Institutional Plan - Weekly Dividend  0.01  5.15  5.15
HDFC FMP 3M May 2006 (1) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  1.01  10.14  10.14
HDFC FMP 6M June 2006 (1) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  1.03  10.28  10.28
HDFC FMP 3M June 2006 (I) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  0.52  5.16  5.16
HDFC FMP 3M June 2006 (I) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  0.51  5.07  5.07
HDFC FMP 3M June 2006 (I) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  1.52  15.21  15.21
HDFC FMP 3M Aug. 2006 (1) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  1.03  10.28  10.28
HDFC FMP 3M Sept. 2006 (I) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  2.58  25.82  25.82
HDFC FMP 3M November 2006 (1) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  1.03  10.28  10.28
HDFC FMP 90 D Dec. 2006 (2) - Wholesale Plan - Dividend  2.58  25.82  25.82
HDFC FMP 3M March 2006 (I) - Institutional Plan - Dividend  0.01  0.09  0.09
HSBC Cash Fund Inst. Plan Weekly Dividend  2.13  21.28  21.61
HSBC Income Fund - Short Term - Institutional - Dividend  1.01  10.07  10.12
HSBC Fixed Term Series 7 Dividend  0.01  0.14  0.14
HSBC Fixed Term Series -8 - Dividend  0.01  0.13  0.13
ING Vysya Fixed Maturity Fund Series - X - Dividend Option  1.00  10.00  10.00
ING Vysya Fixed Maturity Fund Series- XIV-dividend Option  1.50  15.00  15.00
ING Vysya Liquid Fund Institutional -Daily Dividend Option  1.02  10.21  10.22
ING Vysya Liquid Fund Daily Dividend Option  0.94  9.42  10.16
JM Fixed Maturity Fund - Series III-Quarerly Plan  1.52  15.23  15.23
Kotak FMP Series 27 Dividend Reinvest  2.98  29.78  29.78
Kotak FMP 6M Series 1 - Dividend  1.54  15.42  15.42
Kotak FMP 3M Series 3-Dividend  0.51  5.07  5.07
Kotak FMP 3M Series 5-Dividend  3.56  35.61  35.61
Kotak FMP 3M Series 6 -Dividend  1.02  10.16  10.16
Kotak Flexi Debt Scheme - Daily Dividend  1.01  10.05  10.09
Kotak liquid Institutional Premium Plan Weekly Dividend  1.50  14.96  15.02
Kotak FMP - Series I - For 90 Days  0.05  0.50  0.53
Kotak FMP Series XVI Dividend  0.00  0.05  0.05
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Kotak FMP Series 20 Dividend  0.00  0.01  0.01
Kotak FMP Series Dividend Reinvest XVIII  0.02  0.16  0.16
Principal Deposit Fund (FMP-3-20) 91 Days Plan Dividend Reinvestment  1.03  10.27  10.27
Principal Deposit Fund 91 Day Plan Dividend  1.55  15.48  15.48
Principal Income Fund (Short Term Plan - Instl. Plan - Weekly Dividend)  2.76  27.59  30.17
Principal Income Fund (Growth Plan )  0.29  2.87  5.00
Principal Deposit Fund - 91 Days  0.13  1.28  1.28
Principal Deposit Fund 91 Day Plan  0.00  0.04  0.04
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan - A - Retail - Dividend  1.02  10.21  10.21
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan - A - Retail - Dividend  1.01  10.13  10.13
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan - A - Retail - Dividend  1.53  15.32  15.32
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan - B - Retail - Dividend  1.01  10.14  10.14
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan -C - Retail - Dividend  1.52  15.23  15.23
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan -C - Retail - Dividend  1.02  10.16  10.16
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan -C - Retail - Dividend  1.02  10.16  10.16
Prudential ICICI FMP Series 32 - Three Months Plan - D - Retail - Dividend  2.54  25.40  25.40
Prudential ICICI Institutional Liquid Plan - SIP Weekly Dividend  3.55  35.53  35.56
Prudential ICICI Institutional Liquid Plan - SIP Weekly Dividend  2.03  20.29  20.30
Prudential ICICI Institutional Liquid Plan - SIP Weekly Dividend  2.03  20.33  20.34
Prudential ICICI - FMP - SR XXV - Yearly (91 days)  0.19  1.92  1.92
Prudential ICICI FMP- Monthly Plan XXVII  0.01  0.09  0.09
Reliance Fixed Term Scheme - Quarterly Plan B Series II Dividend  2.50  25.00  25.00
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - Quarterly Plan B - Series I - Dividend Option  1.52  15.20  15.20
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series III - Dividend Option  1.00  10.04  10.04
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - Quarterly Plan B - Series III- Dividend Option  1.02  10.21  10.21
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series IV - Dividend Option  1.01  10.09  10.09
Reliance Fixed Term Scheme - Quarterly Plan B Series IV Dividend  2.54  25.38  25.38
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series V - Dividend Option  1.01  10.14  10.14
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund -Quarterly Plan B - Series V - Dividend Option  1.54  15.44  15.44
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series VI - Dividend Option  1.02  10.19  10.19
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - Quarterly Plan I - Series I- Dividend Option  1.04  10.36  10.36
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I Monthly Plan - Series I - Dividend Plan  1.02  10.24  10.24
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I Monthly Plan - Series II - Dividend Plan  1.03  10.29  10.29
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - Quarterly Plan B Series II Dividend  2.58  25.78  25.78
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I - Quarterly Plan B Series III - Dividend Plan  1.57  15.68  15.68
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I Monthly Plan - Series III - Dividend Plan  1.03  10.34  10.34
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I Monthly Plan - Series IV - Dividend Plan  1.04  10.40  10.40
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund II Monthly Plan - Series I -Retail Dividend Plan  1.04  10.40  10.40
Reliance Liquidity Fund - Weekly Dividend Reinvest Option  2.51  25.07  25.10
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund II- Dividend Option  0.33  3.33  3.33
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series 11 - Dividend Option  0.33  3.34  3.34
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series III - Dividend Option  0.34  3.36  3.36
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series IV - Dividend Option  0.34  3.37  3.37
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series VI - Dividend Option  0.34  3.40  3.40
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I - Monthly Plan - Series I - Dividend Plan  0.34  3.42  3.42

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
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SCHEDULE 7
SUNDRY DEBTORS 1(o)(ii)
Unsecured
Debts Outstanding for a period
exceeding six months

Considered good  21.55  24.52
Considered doubtful  25.38  23.76
Less : provided for  25.38  23.76

Other Debts  360.96  201.78

 382.51  226.30

Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I - Monthly Plan - Series II - Dividend Plan  0.34  3.44  3.44
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund I - Monthly Plan - Series III - Dividend Plan  0.34  3.44  3.44
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund Monthly Plan A - Series V - Dividend Option  0.34  3.39  3.39
SBI Debt Fund Series - 90 Days (October) - Dividend  0.50  5.00  5.00
SBI Debt Fund Series - 60 Days (November 06) - Dividend  2.50  25.00  25.00
SBI Debt Fund Series - 60 Days (November 06) - Growth  0.50  5.00  5.00
SBI Debt Fund Series - 90 Days (December 06) - Dividend  0.50  5.00  5.00
Standard Chartered Fixed Maturity -7th Plan - Dividend  1.00  10.00  10.00
Sundaram Fixed Term Plan Series VI June 06 (100 days)  2.00  20.00  20.00
Sundaram Fixed Term Plan Series VIII (30 days ) - Dividend Plan  2.51  25.13  25.13
Sundaram BNP Fixed Term Plan Series XI (90 days ) - Dividend Plan  2.51  25.13  25.13
Sundaram BNP Fixed Term Plan Series XI (90 days ) - Dividend Plan  0.50  5.00  5.00
Sundaram BNP Fixed Term Plan Series XI (90 days ) - Dividend Plan  2.50  25.00  25.00
Sundaram BNP Paribas Fixed Term Plan Series XIV 90 days - Dividend Plan  1.52  15.24  15.24
Sundaram BNP Paribas Fixed Term Plan Series XVII 90 days - Dividend Plan  0.51  5.09  5.09
Sundaram BNP Paribas Money Fund Inst. Weekly Dividend Reinvestment  0.49  4.90  5.09
Tata Fixed Horizon Fund Series 5 - Scheme C  0.51  5.07  5.07
Tata Fixed Horizon Fund Series 6 - Scheme G - Dividend  0.52  5.15  5.15
Tata Fixed Horizon Fund  0.01  0.07  0.07
Tata Fixed Horizon Fund Series 5 Scheme A (6 Months )Dividend  0.03  0.30  0.30

 1,399.06  1,407.29

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

Cost of
Name  No of units  Face Value Acquisition
Units  in Crore  Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

Sch 18 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 6
INVENTORIES
(As valued and certified by Management) 1 ( g )

Raw Materials and Components  161.68  83.34
[Including Rs. 23.14 Crore Goods in Transit
(Previous year Rs. 15.08 Crore)]
Work-in-Progress  21.43  21.25
Finished Goods  10.58  9.32
Stores, Spare Parts and Tools  6.55  4.83

 200.24  118.74
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Sch 18 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE 8
CASH & BANK BALANCES

Cash on hand  0.32  1.08

Bank Balances & remittances in transit :
With Scheduled banks :
In Current accounts  7.14  13.56
In Deposit accounts  0.03  0.05

With Other Banks in Foreign Currency:
In Current Accounts
Bangkok Bank - Bangkok  0.02  0.01
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.16 Crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.10 Crore)]
PT Bank Mandiri - Indonesia 0.01  0.04
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.24 Crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.09 Crore)]
Al Ahli Bank- Kuwait  0.12  0.52
[Maximum balance during the year Rs.1.99 Crore
 (Previous year Rs. 0.52 Crore)]
Bank Bumiputra - Malaysia  0.00  0.01
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.18 Crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.03 Crore)]
Bank Austria - Moscow  0.02  0.06
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.23 Crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.14 Crore)]
Bank of Baroda - Belgium  0.27  —
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.27 Crore
(Previous year Rs. Nil)
HSBC Bank - Dubai  0.12  —
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.46 Crore
(Previous year Rs. Nil)
Standard Chartered Grindlays Bank - Bangladesh  0.01  0.04
[Maximum balance during the year Rs. 0.43 Crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.08 Crore)]
Remittances in Transit  54.41  20.74

 62.47  36.11

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
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SCHEDULE 9
LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind  105.70  43.20
or for value to be received
Advances for Capital Expenditure  10.56  0.53
Loans & Advances to Subsidiary Companies 16  4.14  6.62
(Net of dues Rs. Nil)
Advances to Staff and Workers  6.04  6.52
[Including Advances to Directors & Officers Rs. Nil
(Previous year Rs. Nil)]
[Maximum balance Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)]
Balance in Central Excise & Customs Accounts  25.34  4.12
Sundry Deposits  10.27  7.45
[Including Deposits with Directors Rs. 0.40 Crore
(Previous year Rs. 0.40 Crore)]
[Maximum balance Rs. 0.40 Crore
(Previous year Rs.0.40 Crore)]
Advance Payment of Income Tax and Wealth Tax  24.87  18.29
[Net of Provision of Rs. 385.53 Crore
(Previous year Rs.283.32 Crore)]
Advance Payment of Fringe Benefit Tax  0.03 —
[Net of Provision of Rs. 6.00 Crore
(Previous year Rs.3.89 Crore)]

 186.95  86.73
SCHEDULE 10
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Acceptances  14.89  11.21
Customer Advances  604.13  247.01
Sundry Creditors 3 & 4  293.14  151.28
Other Liabilities 15  86.50  67.91
Trade Deposits  1.38  1.31

 1000.04  478.72
SCHEDULE 11
PROVISIONS 1(j)
Proposed Equity Dividend  30.98  40.51
Provision for Tax on Dividend  5.27  5.68
Provision for Employee Retirement & Other Benefits 1(i)  14.86  9.25
Provision for obligation under Counter Guarantees 12 & 26  5.48  —
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax Net of Advance Tax — 0.80

 56.59  56.24

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007

Sch 18 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 12
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(To the extent not written off or adjusted) 1(h)
Technical Know-how
Per last Balance Sheet  0.20  0.71
Less: Amortised during the period  0.10  0.51

 0.10  0.20
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SCHEDULE 13
SALES AND OTHER INCOME
I. Sales 1(k) & 7(B)

(i) Domestic  1808.50  1255.42
Less: Excise Duty  97.95  86.28

Net Sales  1710.55  1169.14
Add : Closing CIP  0.93  ( 23.70)
Less : Opening CIP  ( 23.70)  ( 11.81)

 1735.18  1157.25
(ii) Exports  356.42  318.79

Add : Closing CIP  43.93  1.82
Less : Opening CIP  1.81  13.95

[Includes Deemed Exports of Rs 64.49 Crore 398.54  306.66
(Previous Year Rs. 72.87 Crore)]

(iii) Trading Exports  3.11  0.95

Total Sales (I)  2136.83  1464.86

II. Other Income from Operations
(i) Claims and Refunds  0.27  0.25
(ii) Balances earlier written off now recovered  1.10  0.39
(iii) Commission  4.12  2.34
(iv) Sale of scrap  8.01  5.49
(v) Exchange difference income 1(m) & 18  4.85  0.60
(vi) Provision for doubtful debt written-back  —  0.26
(vii) Miscellaneous income  17.86  9.21

Total Other Income from Operations (II)  36.21  18.54

III. Other Income From Investments
(i) Dividend from subsidiaries  1.20  0.60
(ii) Dividend - others 1 (k)(viii)  29.84  10.30
(iii) Interest  3.45  0.42
(iv) Profit/(Loss) on sale of investment  1.25  2.08
(v) Provision for dimunition in value of  1.00  0.79

investments written back
(vi) Miscellaneous Income  0.25  0.41

Total Income from Investments (III)  36.99  14.60

(I+II+III)  2210.03  1498.00

Schedules attached to and forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended
March 31, 2007

Sch 18 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended
March 31, 2007

Sch 18 Year ended Year ended
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 14
MATERIALS

A. Consumption of raw materials and components

Opening Stocks  72.91  68.84
Add: Purchases  1507.02  959.17
(Including cost of goods resold)

 1579.93  1028.01

Less: Closing Stocks  144.90  72.91

(A)  1435.03  955.10
B. (Increase)/Decrease in stocks

Opening Stocks:
Work-in-Progress  21.25  12.36
Finished Goods  9.32  11.03

 30.57  23.39
Less: Closing Stocks :

Work-in-Progress  21.43  21.25
Finished Goods  10.58  9.32

 32.01  30.57
 (B)  (1.44)  (7.18)

 (A)+(B) 7(c)  1433.59  947.92

SCHEDULE 15
PERSONNEL

Salaries, wages, bonus, testimonials and allowances  165.70  109.94
Gratuity 1 (i)(ii)  4.75  3.48
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 1 (i)(i)  12.74  9.52
Staff Welfare Expenses  7.95  7.98

 191.14  130.92
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended
March 31, 2007

Sch 18 Year ended Year ended
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Reference Rs. Crore Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE 16
OTHER EXPENSES
a. Consumables and Tools  14.01  12.20
b. Power and Fuel  11.35  8.81
c. Drawing, Design and Technical Service Charges  21.03  16.62
d. Site Expenses and Contract Labour Charges  11.89  11.03
e. Rent and Service Charges  5.31  2.20
f. Lease Rentals  0.00  0.19
g. Rates and Taxes  1.11  0.87
h. Insurance  2.34  1.62
i. Repairs and Maintenance:

Building  4.18  1.90
Plant and Machinery  5.44  4.34
Others  9.84  5.72

j. Communication  6.59  5.58
k. Travelling and Conveyance  32.92  27.36
l. Advertising and Exhibition Expenses  2.16  1.96
m. Freight Outward  14.38  11.72
n. Commission on Sales  18.76  9.27
o. Other Selling and Distribution Expenses  17.05  15.39
p. Free of Cost Supplies and Modifications  14.91  12.41
q. Bank Charges  6.13  4.20
r. Legal & Professional Charges  24.47  23.61
s. Printing and Stationery  3.40  2.69
t. Donations  0.36  0.33
u. Bad Debts  1.98  9.94
v. Provision for Doubtful Debts 13(A)(iii)/1(o)(ii)  1.58  —
w. Liquidated Damages 1(o)(i)  4.26  7.85
x. Loss on Assets sold/discarded (net)  0.86  0.51
y. Additional Sales Tax and Turnover Tax  0.93  0.53
z. Premium on Forward Contracts(net) 18  0.01  0.01
aa. Balances Written Off  0.20  0.39
ab. Miscellaneous Expenses 6  12.54  10.00
ac. Deferred Revenue Expenditure 1(h)  0.10  0.51
ad. Diminution in Value of Long-term Investments 1(f)/13(A)(i)&(ii)  17.29  —

267.38  209.76

SCHEDULE 17
INTEREST 1(l)

Interest on:
Fixed Period Loans  —  —
Others  1.30  0.94

 1.30  0.94
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Schedules forming part of the Accounts

SCHEDULE 18

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention on accrual basis
and comply with accounting standards referred
to in Section 211(3C) and other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with the generally accepted
accounting principles requires estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. Differences between the actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in
which the results are known / materialised.

c) Fixed Assets – Tangible and Intangible Assets

i. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost (net
of refundable taxes or levies) and include
any other attributable cost for bringing the
assets to working condition for their
intended use.

ii. Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to fixed
assets, are capitalised.

iii. Machinery specific spares other than those
required for regular maintenance are
capitalised as a part of the tangible fixed
assets.

iv. Expenditure incurred on acquisition or
development of goodwill, technical know-
how, software, patents, research and
development and such other intangibles are
recognised as Intangible Asset, if it is
expected that such assets will generate
sufficient future economic benefits.

v. Exchange differences on liability relating
to imported fixed assets are adjusted in the
carrying cost of the respective fixed assets.

d) Depreciation

i. Cost incurred on Leasehold land is
amortised over the period of lease.

ii. Depreciation on all tangible fixed assets is
provided by the straight line method in the
manner and at the rates prescribed in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956,
except following :

- in case of data processing equipments/
computers, which are depreciated at a
higher rate of 33.33% as compared to
16.21% provided in Schedule XIV.

- certain vehicle related to employee
perquisites are depreciated at a higher
rate of 15% / 13.45% as compared to
9.50% provided in Schedule XIV.

- No depreciation is charged on assets
sold during the year.

iii. Depreciation in respect of capitalized
machinery specific spares whose use is
expected to be irregular is charged over the
remaining useful life of the related item of
plant and machinery. The written down
value of such spares is charged to profit and
loss account when issued for consumption.

iv. Intangible assets are amortised by straight
line method over the estimated useful life
of such asset. The useful life is estimated
based on the evaluation of future economic
benefits expected of such assets.

v. Depreciation on exchange difference
capitalised as a part of the fixed assets, is
provided prospectively over the remaining
useful life of the related assets.

vi. Depreciation on the entire plant and
machinery of chemical division is charged
considering the chemical plant as a
“Continuous Process Plant”.

e) Asset Impairment

Provision for impairment loss is recognized to
the extent by which the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
net selling price and its value in use. Value in
use is determined on the basis of the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from
its disposal at the end of its useful life.
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f) Investments

Investments classified as Long-term investments
are carried at cost. However, provision for
diminution is made to recognize a decline, other
than temporary in nature, in the carrying amount
of such long-term investments.

g) Inventories

i. Inventories are valued at lower of cost and
estimated net realisable value.

ii. Cost of raw materials, components,
consumables, tools, stores & spares is
arrived at on the basis of weighted average
cost.

iii. Cost of finished goods & work in progress
is arrived at on the basis of weighted
average cost of raw materials & the cost of
conversion thereof for bringing the
inventories upto their present location and
condition.

iv. Inventory obsolescence is provided for on
the basis of standard norms.

h) Deferred Revenue Expenditure

Expenditure incurred up to 31st March 2003, on
research and development, technical know-how
and software, other than those capitalised as
fixed asset or expensed out as revenue
expenditure, are being amortised over a period
of time (maximum six years) depending upon
the nature of the expenditure and evaluation of
future benefits there from.

i) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i. Contributions to approved Provident and
Superannuation Funds, being defined
contribution schemes, are made on actual
liability basis calculated as a percentage of
salary.

ii. Contribution to Gratuity Fund, being a
defined benefit scheme, is paid by way of
premium under Group Gratuity – cum –
Life Assurance Policy (Cash accumulation)
administered by Life Insurance Corporation
of India (LIC), at the rate computed by LIC.
Therefore, no note is taken of the difference
in the amount of actuarial liability and the
balance in the fund account with LIC.

iii. Leave encashment benefit is provided on
the basis of actuarial valuation.

iv. Liability on account of the Company’s
obligations under employees’ medical
reimbursement scheme and leave travel
assistance scheme is provided on actual
basis.

j) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

i. Provisions in respect of present obligations
arising out of past events are made in the
accounts when reliable estimates can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

ii. The Company provides for warranty
obligations on substantial completion of
contracts based on technical evaluation and
past experience.

iii. Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way
of note to the financial statements, after
careful evaluation by the management of
the facts and legal aspects of the matter
involved.

k) Revenue Recognition

i. Revenue in respect of products is
recognized on dispatch of goods to the
customer or when they are unconditionally
appropriated to the contract.

ii. Revenue in respect of projects for
construction of plants and systems,
execution of which is spread over different
accounting periods is recognized on the
basis of percentage of completion method.

iii. Stage of completion is determined by the
proportion that contract costs incurred for
work done till date bears to the estimated
total contract costs.

iv. Difference between costs incurred plus
recognized profits / less recognized losses
and the amount of invoiced sale is disclosed
as contract in progress.

v. Determination of revenues under the
percentage of completion method
necessarily involves making estimates by
the Company (some of which are of a
technical nature) concerning the costs to
completion, the expected revenue from the
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contract and the foreseeable losses to
completion.

vi. Supply of spare parts and services are
accounted on ‘as billed’ basis.

vii. Revenue in respect of long-term service
contracts / maintenance contracts is
recognized on the basis of stage of
completion.

viii. Dividend from investments is recognized
when the Company’s right to receive is
established.

l) Borrowing Costs

i. Borrowing costs on working capital is
charged to profit and loss statement in the
year of incurrence.

ii. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of tangible fixed assets are
capitalized till the date of substantial
completion of the activities necessary to
prepare the relevant asset for its intended
use.

iii. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acquisition or development of intangible
assets are capitalised till the date they are
put to use.

m) Foreign Currency Transactions

i. Transactions in foreign currencies are
recorded at the exchange rates prevailing
on the respective dates of the transactions.

ii. Difference between the forward exchange
rate and exchange rate prevailing at the
inception of the forward exchange contract
is recognised as income or expense over
the life of the contract or adjusted in the
carrying amount of fixed assets depending
upon the nature of transaction.

iii. Exchange difference is either adjusted in
the carrying amount of imported fixed
assets or dealt with in the Profit & Loss
Account, depending upon the nature of
transaction.

iv. Foreign currency monetary items are
translated at the closing exchange rates, or
in cases covered by forward exchange
contracts, at the spot exchange rate
prevailing at the inception of the forward
exchange contract.

v. Non-monetary items which are carried in
terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

vi. Revenue items of foreign branches are
translated at weighted average rate.

n) Taxes on Income

i. Current tax is provided on the basis of
estimated tax liability, computed as per
applicable provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

ii. Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the
consideration of prudence, in respect of
deferred tax assets, on timing differences,
being the differences between taxable
income and accounting income that
originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

o) Others

i. Liquidated damages are charged to Profit
& Loss account on the basis of deduction
made by customers.

ii. Provision for doubtful debts is made on the
basis of standard norms in respect of
Debtors outstanding beyond predefined
period and also, where required, on actual
evaluation.

2. Contingent Liability

a) Disputed demands in respect of Excise and
Customs Duty Rs. 15.65 Crore (Previous Year
Rs. 4.99 Crore), Sales Tax Rs. 1.38 Crore
(Previous Year Rs. 1.65 Crore) and other Statutes
Rs. 10.96 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 11.07 Crore)

b) Income Tax

i) Demands disputed in appellate proceedings
Rs. 19.18 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 23.22
Crore).

ii) References / Appeals preferred by Income
Tax department in respect of which, should
the ultimate decision be unfavourable to the
Company, the liability is estimated to be Rs.
21.30 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 21.30
Crore).

c) Counter Guarantees given by the Company to
the banks on behalf of group companies :
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Rs. 11.51 Crore on behalf of Thermax
Engineering Construction Co. Ltd , Rs. 24.32
Crore on behalf of Thermax Instrumentation Ltd.
and Rs. 1.13 Crore on behalf of ME Engineering
Ltd, towards securing advances received from
clients and performance of contracts (Previous
Year Rs. 7.92 Crore for Thermax Engineering
Construction Co. Ltd and Rs. 2.67 Crore for ME
Engineering Ltd.).

d) Counter Guarantees given to the banks for
guarantees issued by them on Company’s behalf
Rs. 549.54 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 311.09
Crore).

e) Indemnity Bonds/Corporate Guarantees given by
the Company to the customers on behalf of ME
Engineering Rs. 1.73 Crore (Previous Year Rs.
1.57 Crore) and for securing banking facilities
obtained by ME Engineering Rs. Nil (Previous
Year Rs. 4.77 Crore).

f) Indemnity Bonds/Corporate guarantees given to
Customs, other Government departments and
various customers Rs. 21.82 Crore (Previous
Year Rs. 11.64 Crore).

g) Liability for unexpired export obligations Rs.
3.04 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 1.57 Crore).

h) Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debts Rs. 0.18 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 0.18
Crore).

i) Bills Discounted with banks Rs. 25.58 Crore
(Previous Year Rs. 22.24 Crore).

j) Liability in respect of partly paid shares in
Parasrampuria Synthetics Ltd. Rs. 0.19 Crore
(Previous Year Rs. 0.19 Crore).

3. Small Scale Industries:

Liability regarding Small Scale Industrial (SSI)
Undertakings has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. This has
been relied upon by the auditors.

Sundry Creditors include Rs. 11.04 Crore (Previous
Year Rs. 28.51 Crore) due to SSI Undertakings. Out
of this, Rs. 1.34 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 4.53 Crore)
are due to SSI Undertakings, listed below, each
outstanding for more than 30 days, within agreed
terms :

A A Chemicals, A D Engineers, A.G.Engineering
Services, A. K. Industries, Abhiraj Plastic Industries,

Abros Enterprises, Airochem Engineering Company,
Akshay Chemicals, Akshay Dynamics, Akshaya Metal
Works, Alliance Engineering Co, Alloy Steels, Alpa
Engineering, Amee Metals Pvt Ltd, Ameya
Enterprises, Amir Fabricators, Anant Enterprises, Ann
Engineer’s, Anvin Engineers & Instruments, Arun
Plast, Asara Engineering Works, Ashirwad
Enterprises, Basava Engineers, Bengal Industries,
Biju Engineers, Biju Industries, Castwel Industries,
Chaitanya Industries, Chaitraa Engineers,  Chemiron
Industries, Citizen Engineering Works, Creative
Moulding Industries, D.S.Engg., Delta Flow,
Deshpande Enterprises, Devam Industries, Eagle
Plastics, Electrotech Systems, Emkay Rubber Works,
Fair Tech Engineers, Fortek Engineers, Friends
Engineering Works, Genuine Filters, Goa Instruments
Industries, Greentech Engineers, H M Enterprises, H
R Refractories, Harshada Industries, Helicon
Engineering Company, Hemant Industries, Indus
Metal Works, Isha Engineering Works, K J
Engineering Works, K M V Industries, Keltron
Controls, Kuksons Electronics Pvt Ltd, Laxmi
Engineering Works, M H Valves Pvt Ltd, Magtronix,
Mahajan Enterprises, Mangalam Enterprises, Master
Fab Engineers, Max-Fab, Mayuresh Engineering
Works, Metal Carves Corporation, Metapow
Industries, Mhetre Industries, Modern Crafts, Multi-
Tech Fabricators, Neha Industries, Nutan
Engineering, Nutech Engineers, Omkar Fabricators,
P R S Fabricators, Panchal Engineering Works,
Parmar Techno Forge, Prashant Engineering, Preet
Enterprises, Prompt Engineering Works,  Punjab
Metal Works, R R Industries, Radhika Fabricators,
Rahul Engineering Co, Rashmi Fabricators, Rasvin
Rubbers Pvt Ltd, Ravi Industries, Royal Engineering,
S S Engineering, Sai Industries, Shiv Industrial
Products, Shree Engineers, Shree Yash Engineers,
Shreeji Insulation, Siddharth Engineers, Singhal
Packaging, Sumo Engineers, Sunbeam Rubber
Linings, Superb Engineers, Systems Technologies,
Uma Enterprises, Unique Engineers, Vasudha
Enterprises,Vatturkar Industrial, Vikrant Industries,
Vipani Udyog, Yasho Industries P Ltd.

4. The Company, on its own, has initiated the process
of obtaining the information from the suppliers
regarding filing by them of necessary memorandum
with the appointed authority as required by The Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006. However, the Company has not yet received
the relevant information from the suppliers required
for the purpose of disclosure under Section 22 of the
said Act.
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5. Directors’ Remuneration *:
Rs. Crore

2006-07  2005-06

(i) Salaries  1.11 @  0.83 @

(ii) Contribution to Provident & other funds 0.16 0.11

(iii) Perquisites in cash or in kind  Nil 0.01

(iv) Commission to Non-Executive Directors  0.62  Nil

@ includes Rs. 0.50 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 0.40 Crore) commission payable to the Managing Director.
* Within the limits specified by Schedule XIII of the Companies Act, 1956.

Note : Provisions for contribution to employee retirement / post retirement and other employee benefits which are
based on actuarial valuations done on an overall company basis are excluded above.

a) Computation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 198 and 309(5) of the Companies Act, 1956
 Rs. Crore

2006-07  2005-06

(i) Profit Before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items 296.02 192.53

(ii) Add:

Remuneration to Directors 1.89 0.95
Directors sitting fees 0.20 0.14
Provision for diminution in investment 17.29 Nil
Loss on discarded assets 0.31 0.08
Loss on sale of assets 0.60 0.47

 Sub total (ii) 20.29 1.64

(iii) Less:

Profit on sale of assets 0.05 0.04
Profit on sale of investment 1.25 2.08
Write-back of provision for diminution in the value of investments 1.00 0.79

Sub total ( iii) 2.30 2.91

Net profit as per Sections 349 & 350 of the
Companies Act, 1956 (i + ii - iii) 314.01 191.26

Remuneration to Whole-time Director(s) restricted to 15.70 9.56

6. Auditors’ Remuneration & Directors fees :

Other expenses include:
 Rs. Crore

2006-07 2005-06
a) Auditors’ Remuneration

(excluding service tax)

i) As Auditors 0.33 0.30

ii) For Taxation matters 0.11 0.17

(including Tax Audits)

iii) Certification fees 0.01 0.01

iv) Reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.01

b) Directors Sitting fees 0.20 0.14
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7. Additional Information under Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 :
A) Production and Stock

Particulars Units Installed Prod.Qty. Closing Stock as Closing Stock
Capacity

2006-07 2005-06
on 31.03.2007 as on 31.03.2006

Qty Value Qty Value

Energy Products & Systems
a) Boilers Capacity up to Nos. 3,281 2,080 2,050 169 9.13 223 7.62

30MT / Chillers
b) Boilers Capacity above 30MT MT 5,700 2,727 2,538 - - - -
c) Heaters Mn.Kg Cal - 14 42 - - - -
d) Power Plants MW - 101 69 - - - -
Environmental Products & Systems
a) Air Pollution Control Nos. - 940 555 - -  - -

Plants & Systems
b) Water and Waste Treatment Plants Nos. - 1,713 1,429 1 0.03 - -
c) Ion Exchange Resins & Chemicals MT 34,890 15,856 14,056 365 1.43 475 1.70
Components & Spares Numerous - - - - 6.55 - 4.83

Total 17.13 14.15

Note: Installed capacity has been certified by the Management and has been accepted by the Auditors without verification, this
being a technical matter.

B) Turnover of goods manufactured & traded (Net of Excise)

Particulars UNIT 2006-07 2005-06

QTY. VALUE QTY. VALUE

Energy Products & Systems
a) Boilers capacity up to 30 MT / Chillers

(i) Completed NOS. 2,125 377.83 1,950 337.61
(ii) Ongoing 17 41.33 13 18.05

b) Boilers Capacity above 30MT
(i) Completed MT 2,072 264.59 2,286 308.43
(ii) Ongoing - 403.62 - 108.71

c) Heaters Mn.Kg. Cal 14 7.26 42 15.37
d) Power Plants

(i) Completed MW 101 32.99 69 27.51
(ii) Ongoing - 434.80 - 207.94

Environmental Products & Systems
a) Air Pollution Control Plants & Systems NOS.

(i) Completed 704 139.06 426 111.45
(ii) Ongoing 15 16.93 8 27.65

b) Water & Waste Treatment Plants NOS.
(i) Completed 1681 61.67 1,395 59.89
(ii) Ongoing 60 92.72 31 40.00

c) Ion Exchange Resins & Chemicals MT 15,263 122.87 13,317 102.28
Goods Traded In Numerous - 4.46 - 15.26
Accessories, Spares, Erection, Commissioning,
Services etc. - 136.71 - 84.71

Total 2136.83 1464.86

Notes:
I) Quantitative turnover figures are excluding sales returns and trading quantities
II) a) Energy Products & Systems :

i. Boiler capacity up to 30 MT / chiller
- 3 nos. used for captive consumption (Previous Year 3 nos.)
- 6 nos. free replacements (Previous Year 5 nos.)

ii. Boiler capacity above 30 MT.
- 655 MT used for captive consumption (Previous Year 252MT)

b) Environmental Products & Systems :
i. Air Pollution Control Plants & Systems

- 236 nos. used for captive consumption (Previous Year 129 nos.)
ii. Water & Waste Treatment Plants

- 31 nos. used for captive consumption (Previous Year 34 nos.)
iii. Ion Exchange Resins & Chemicals

- 651 MT used for captive consumption (Previous Year 555MT)
- 52 MT free replacements (Previous Year 11 MT)

(Value in Rs. Crore)
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D) Value of imported & indigenous raw materials, components & spare parts consumed

Particulars % 2006-07 % 2005-06

Imported 17 240.82 14 135.83

Indigenous 83 1192.77 86 812.09

Total 100 1433.59 100 947.92

(Value in Rs. Crore)

E) CIF Value of Imports

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

Raw Materials 180.13 99.98

Components & Spares 64.71 54.79

Consumables 7.09 1.13

Capital Goods 6.39 1.17

Total 258.33 157.07

F) Earnings in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

Export of goods on FOB 303.98 240.39

Others 1.65 1.60

Total 305.63 242.01

G) Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

Technical Fees 0.65 2.71

Expenses in Foreign Offices 8.48 4.96

Royalty 3.35 3.62

Travelling, Commission and Others 23.53 20.40

Capital Expenditure at foreign offices 0.18 0.01

Total 36.19 31.70

C) Consumption of Raw Materials, Components etc.

Particulars UNIT 2006-07 2005-06

QTY. VALUE QTY. VALUE

Ferrous Sheets, Plates MT 13,177 50.72 12,529 42.14

Ferrous Tubes Numerous 168.35 78.53

Fabricated Items Numerous 419.24 340.77

Chemicals MT 22,411 72.48 20,480 65.96

Purchase of goods for resale Numerous 4.14 6.68

Others Numerous 718.65 413.83

Total 1433.59 947.92
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8. Contracts in Progress (CIP)

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

A. Aggregate amount recognised as Contract Revenue (excluding Captive) 1,365.99 992.90

B. In respect of Contract in Progress as on 31st March :

1) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognised profits
(less recognised losses) 1,304.91 1,292.63

2) Amount of Customer Advances received 474.08 191.97
3) Amount of Retentions 27.46 24.11

C. Gross amount due from customers for contract work 75.32 43.54

D. Gross amount due to customers for contract work 30.46 65.43

9. Deferred Tax :
Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

Major components of deferred tax asset:

i Provision for Doubtful Debts 8.63 8.00
ii Diminution in Value of Investments Nil 0.45
iii Others 0.66 1.36

Total (A) 9.29  9.81

Major components of deferred tax liability

i Depreciation on Fixed Assets 19.28 18.47
ii Others 0.40 0.63

Total (B) 19.68 19.10

Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liability) (A-B) (10.39)*  (9.29)*

* Includes net Deferred Tax Assets of Rs. Nil on account of amalgamations (previous year Rs. 1.26 Crore).
Deferred Tax debit for the year of Rs. 1.10 Crore (Previous Year debit Rs. 2.36 Crore) has been recognised in
the Profit & Loss Account of the year.

10. Amalgamation of Subsidiary Companies

Pursuant to the Schemes of Amalgamation approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay, by its
orders dated 12th January 2007, issued on 31st January 2007 and filed with the Registrar of Companies on 9th February
2007, the entire undertaking and all the properties, assets, liabilities, obligations etc. of Thermax Co-gen Ltd. (TCGL),
Thermax Electronics Ltd. (TEL) and Winman Gas Ltd. (WGL), wholly-owned subsidiary companies, stand transferred
to and vest in the Company w.e.f. the Appointed Date viz. 1st April, 2006. The schemes have accordingly been given
effect to.

Income, expenses and results of TCGL, TEL and WGL for the year ended 31st March, 2007, have been incorporated
in the accounts under report.

In view of the above, figures of the current year are not comparable with those of the previous year.

TCGL, TEL and WGL were not engaged in any specific business activity.

The amalgamations have been accounted for by the “Pooling of Interest Method” prescribed by Accounting Standard
14 (AS 14) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and reserves
of TCGL, TEL and WGL have been recorded at their existing carrying amounts. Difference of Rs. 3.01 Crore
between nominal value of the shares held by the Company in WGL and their cost of acquisition has been adjusted
against Amalgamation Reserve and Capital Reserve.

(Value in Rs. Crore)
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However, in following cases, treatment given to reserves, as prescribed in the Schemes approved by the Hon’ble
High Court, differs from that prescribed in AS 14 :

a) Debit balance in Profit & Loss Account of Rs. 1.00 crore and Rs. 1.17 Crore of WGL and TEL respectively and
credit balance of Rs. 0.05 Crore in case of TCGL have been adjusted against Amalgamation Reserve instead of
Profit & Loss Account / General Reserve.

b) The credit balance of Rs. 0.02 Crore in the Capital Reserve of WGL has been credited to Amalgamation Reserve
instead of Capital Reserve.

c) The credit balance of Rs. 0.35 Crore in the General Reserve of TEL has been credited to Amalgamation Reserve
instead of General Reserve.

TCGL, TEL and WGL being 100% subsidiaries of the Company, on amalgamation, the shares held by the Company
in TCGL, TEL and WGL stand extinguished and no separate consideration is payable for the amalgamation.

All costs, charges and expenses in relation to the scheme of amalgamation have been borne by the Company.

11. Share Capital

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Equity Capital includes 1,06,78,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each allotted as fully paid
up for consideration other than cash as per various schemes of amalgamation and 1,71,37,500 shares of Rs. 2/- each
issued by way of bonus shares on capitalisation of General Reserve.

12. Extra ordinary items of expenses during the year are as follows

Rs. 5.48 Crore being provision for possible financial obligations, as provisionally estimated by the Company, on
account of counter-guarantees given by the Company in relation to M.E. Engineering  Ltd. (ME, UK.)

13. Profit for the year before tax is after accounting for the following exceptional item of expenses

(A) Provisions in relation to wholly owned subsidiary companies :

i) Rs. 12.10 Crore being provision for diminution in the value of long term investment in the shares of an
overseas subsidiary which is in turn based on the diminution in the value of shares of  ME, UK, a UK based
step down subsidiary of the Company and two other companies.

ii) Rs. 5.19 Crore being provision for diminution in the value of long term investment in the shares of two
overseas subsidiaries.

iii) Rs. 0.78 Crore being provision for debts owed to the Company by ME, UK.

The affairs of ME, UK. have presently been handed over to an Administrator under the local insolvency laws.

(B) Thermax Energy Performance Services Ltd. (TEPS), a subsidiary company, has been referred to voluntary
winding-up and the process has been commenced on 28th February 2007.

14. Secured Loan

Working capital facilities (packing credits, shipping loans, cash credits & overdrafts) from banks are secured by
hypothecation of present and future stock of raw materials, consumables, spares, semi-finished goods, finished
goods & book debts.

15. Other Liabilities

Other Liabilities include following amounts which will be credited to Investors Education and Protection Fund (on
expiry of the specified period, if the amount remains unclaimed at that time):-
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(Rs. Crore)

As on 31.03.07  As on 31.03.06

i) Unclaimed Dividend on Equity 0.34 0.24

ii) Unclaimed Dividend on RPS 0.02 0.02

iii) RPS Redemption Amount 0.11 0.15

iv) Unclaimed matured deposits 0.01 0.01

16. Disclosure of amounts at the year end and the maximum amount of loans / advances / investments outstanding
during the year

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries:
(Rs. Crore)

Sr No Name of subsidiary Bal. Outstanding Maximum Bal. Outstanding
As on 31.3.07 During the Year

1 Thermax Hong Kong Ltd.* Nil 0.05

2 Thermax Surface Coatings Ltd. 2.16 2.16

3 Thermax Instrumentation Ltd. 0.66 0.66

* Loans and Advances in the nature of loans where there is:

i) no repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven years or

ii) no interest or interest below Section 372A of The Companies Act

17. In cases where letters of confirmation have been received from parties, book balances have been generally reconciled
and adjusted, if required. In other cases, balances in accounts of sundry debtors, sundry creditors and advances or
deposits have been taken as per books of account.

18. Foreign Exchange Transactions

a) Net foreign exchange gain dealt with in the Profit & Loss Account is Rs. 4.85 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 0.60
Crore).

b) The net amount of foreign exchange difference (income) in respect of forward exchange contracts to be recognised
in subsequent accounting period is Rs. 0.01 Crore (Previous Year Rs. 0.01 Crore).

c) The net amount of foreign exchange difference (expense) in respect of forward exchange contracts to be accounted
for in subsequent accounting period is Rs. 0.01 Crore (Previous Year Rs.0.01 Crore).

d) The year end foreign exposures in respect of monetary items that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument
or otherwise are given below :

Amounts payable (net) in foreign currency on account of the following :

Particulars Amt. in Rs. Crore Amt. in foreign currency

Import of Goods 0.97 GBP 1,13,411

Import of Goods 0.37 JY 1,01,85,126
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19. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for

Rs. 110.15 Crore (Previous year Rs. 1.15 Crore).

20. Capitalisation of expenses

a) Raw materials, labour and overheads capitalised in respect of Plant & Machinery Rs. 0.34 Crore (Previous Year

Rs. 0.05 Crore).

b) Foreign exchange fluctuation capitalised during the year amounted to Rs. 0.01 Crore (Previous Year capitalised

Rs. 0.01 Crore).

21. Previous year’s expenses / income included under various heads of accounts:

 (Rs. Crore)

Legal & Professional Charges, Travelling 0.18

Drawing & Design, Site Expenses / Technical Charges 0.13

Repairs & Maintenance Charges 0.11

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 0.19

Miscellaneous Income Nil

22. Segment Reporting

i. The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment. Segments have been identified by
the management taking into account the nature of the products, manufacturing process, customer profiles,
risk and reward parameters and other relevant factors.

The Company’s operations have been mainly classified between two primary segments, ‘Energy’ and
‘Environment’. Composition of business segments is as follows:

Segment Products Covered

a) Energy Boilers and Heaters, Absorption Chillers/Heat Pumps, Power Plants.

b) Environment Air Pollution Control Equipments/ Systems, Water & Waste Recycle Plants, Ion
Exchange Resins & Performance Chemicals.

ii. Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts
identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

The expenses, which are not directly attributable to the business segment, are shown as unallocated cost.

Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as a part of unallocated Assets
and Liabilities respectively.

iii. Secondary segments have been identified with reference to geographical location of external customers.
Composition of secondary segments is as follows:

a) India

b) Outside India

iv. Inter-segment transfer price is arrived at on the basis of cost plus a reasonable mark-up.

19. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for

Rs. 110.15 Crore (Previous year Rs. 1.15 Crore).

20. Capitalisation of expenses

a) Raw materials, labour and overheads capitalised in respect of Plant & Machinery Rs. 0.34 Crore (Previous Year

Rs. 0.05 Crore).

b) Foreign exchange fluctuation capitalised during the year amounted to Rs. 0.01 Crore (Previous Year capitalised

Rs. 0.01 Crore).

21. Previous year’s expenses / income included under various heads of accounts:

 (Rs. Crore)

Legal & Professional Charges, Travelling 0.18

Drawing & Design, Site Expenses / Technical Charges 0.13

Repairs & Maintenance Charges 0.11

Other Miscellaneous Expenses 0.19

Miscellaneous Income Nil

22. Segment Reporting

i. The Company has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment. Segments have been identified by
the management taking into account the nature of the products, manufacturing process, customer profiles,
risk and reward parameters and other relevant factors.

The Company’s operations have been mainly classified between two primary segments, ‘Energy’ and
‘Environment’. Composition of business segments is as follows:

Segment Products Covered

a) Energy Boilers and Heaters, Absorption Chillers/Heat Pumps, Power Plants.

b) Environment Air Pollution Control Equipments/ Systems, Water & Waste Recycle Plants, Ion
Exchange Resins & Performance Chemicals.

ii. Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts
identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

The expenses, which are not directly attributable to the business segment, are shown as unallocated cost.

Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as a part of unallocated Assets
and Liabilities respectively.

iii. Secondary segments have been identified with reference to geographical location of external customers.
Composition of secondary segments is as follows:

a) India

b) Outside India

iv. Inter-segment transfer price is arrived at on the basis of cost plus a reasonable mark-up.
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2006-07

Particulars Energy Environment Total

Revenue :
Gross Revenue 1836.39 532.19 2368.58
Less : Inter-segment Revenue 127.63 67.91 195.54

Net Revenue 1708.76 464.27 2173.04
Result :
Segment Result 255.32 66.48 321.80
Unallocated income net of unallocated expenditure (24.48)

Operating Profit 297.32
Interest expenses 1.30
Taxation for the year 102.74
Profit after taxation and before exceptional items 193.28
Extra-ordinary items of expenses 5.48

Net Profit 187.80
Other Information :
Segment Assets 885.12 249.50 1134.62
Unallocated Corporate Assets 461.21

Total Assets 1595.84

Segment Liabilities 767.61 174.77 942.38
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 74.27

Total Liabilities 1016.65

Capital Expenditure 43.64 7.05 50.69
Depreciation 14.38 4.37 18.75
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation 0.00 0.10 0.10

2005-06

Particulars Energy Environment Total
Revenue :
Gross Revenue 1224.17 405.01 1629.18
Less : Inter-segment Revenue 99.87 45.91 145.78
Net Revenue 1124.30 359.10 1483.40
Result :
Segment Result 164.25 45.60 209.85
Unallocated income net of unallocated expenditure (16.38)
Operating Profit 193.47
Interest expenses 0.94
Taxation for the year 69.28
Profit after taxation and before exceptional items 123.25
Net Profit 123.25
Other Information :
Segment Assets 409.80 187.88 597.68
Unallocated Corporate Assets 444.53
Total Assets 1042.21
Segment Liabilities 369.40 117.87 487.27
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 76.34
Total Liabilities 563.62
Capital Expenditure 26.39 5.00 31.39
Depreciation 11.28 3.93 15.20
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation 0.41 0.10 0.51

I. Information about Primary Segments Rs. Crore
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II. Information about Secondary Segments Rs. Crore

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Revenue :
India 1771.39 1175.79
Outside India 401.65 307.61
Total Revenue 2173.04 1483.40
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets :
India 1081.90 561.71
Outside India 52.72 35.96
Addition to Fixed Assets :
India 50.66 31.38
Outside India 0.03 0.01

The following transactions were carried out during the year with related parties in the ordinary course of business.

1) Details of Transactions with Subsidiary Companies Rs. Crore

23. Related Party Disclosures

Related party disclosures as required under Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India are given below:

Relationship :

A) Enterprises controlled by the Company :

Subsidiary Companies:

i. Domestic:
Thermax Surface Coatings Ltd.
Thermax Energy Performance Services Ltd. (up to 28th Feb. 2007)
Thermax Engineering Construction Co. Ltd.
Thermax Instrumentation Ltd.

ii. Overseas:
– Thermax Europe Ltd., U.K. – Thermax do Brasil Energia e Equipamentos Ltda., Brazil
– Thermax International Ltd., Mauritius – ME Engineering Ltd., U.K. (up to 4th Oct. 2006)
– Thermax Hong Kong Ltd., Hong Kong – Thermax Inc., USA
– Thermax (Zhejiang) Cooling & Heating Engineering Co. Ltd., China (incorporated on 15th Dec. 2006)

B) Individuals having control or significant influence over the Company by reason of voting power, and their relatives :
Mrs. Meher Pudumjee – Chairperson
Mrs. Anu Aga – Director
Mr. Pheroz Pudumjee – Director

C) Key Management Personnel :
Mr. Prakash Kulkarni  – Managing Director

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

I Sales, Service, Other income
Sale of Goods :
i Thermax Europe Ltd 14.07 9.76
ii Thermax Inc. 41.95 38.57
iii Others 0.79 5.69

Total 56.81 54.02

Rendering of Services 0.27 0.66
Interest Income 0.20 0.17
Reimbursement of Expenses / Cost of Material / Stores 0.59 0.27
Management Contracts including for deputation of employees - 0.11
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Rs. Crore

II Purchase of Material
Purchase of Goods
i Thermax Engineering Construction Co. Ltd. 18.98 19.08
ii Others 0.73 —

Total 19.71 19.08
III Expenses

Receiving of Services 1.31 1.14
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.26 1.43
Liquidated Damages Paid
i ME Engineering Ltd. — 0.45
ii Thermax Inc. — 0.17

Total — 0.62
Bad debts / Provision for Doubtful Debts

Thermax Europe Ltd. — 0.82
Management Contracts including for deputation of employees 0.49 0.02
Other Expenses — 0.23

IV Finance (Including Loan / Equity Contribution)
Equity Contribution
i Thermax do Brasil - Energia e Equipamentos Ltda. 0.35 —
ii Thermax (Zhejiang) Cooling & Heating Eng. Co. Ltd. 5.32 —
iii Thermax International Ltd. — 7.81
iv Thermax Hong Kong Ltd. 0.70 0.89

Total 6.37 8.70
Diminution in value of Investments provided
i Thermax International Ltd. 12.10 —
ii Thermax Hong Kong Ltd. 1.70 —
iii Thermax do Brasil - Energia e Equipamentos Ltda. 3.49 —

Total 17.29 —
Loans / Advances Given
i Thermax Surface Coatings Limited 0.05 0.10
ii Winman Gas Ltd.  — 0.48
iii Thermax Instrumentation Ltd.  — 0.61

Total 0.05 1.19
Loans / Advance Received back

Thermax Energy Performance Services Ltd. 0.49 —
Loans / Advance Written off / Provided 0.13 —

V Guarantee / Bond / Collateral Given
i ME Engineering Ltd. 2.86 20.91
ii Thermax Instrumentation Ltd. 24.32 —
iii Thermax Engineering Construction Co. Ltd. 11.51 7.92

Total 38.69 28.83
VI Amount Outstanding - Loan / Advances Receivable

Loan / Advances Outstanding
i Thermax Instrumentation Ltd. 1.93 1.89
ii Winman Gas Ltd. — 2.25
iii Thermax Energy Performance Services Ltd. — 0.58
iv Thermax Surface Coatings Ltd. 2.16 1.88
v Thermax Hong Kong Ltd. — 0.05

Total 4.09 6.65
Accounts Receivable
i Thermax Inc. 25.46 18.59
ii ME Engineering Ltd. — 4.95
iii Thermax Europe Ltd. 3.40 1.68
iv Others 1.08 0.40

Total 29.94 25.62

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06
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Trade Advances
Thermax Engineering Construction Co Ltd. 2.86 0.81

Other Current Assets — 0.12

VII Amount Outstanding - Payable
Accounts Payable
i Thermax Engineering Construction Co. Ltd. 8.54 0.69
ii Others 1.26 0.54

Total 9.80  1.23

2) Details of Transactions relating to the Persons
refered to at ‘B’ and ‘C’ above
Managerial Remunaration 1.27 0.95
Directors’ Sitting Fees 0.09 0.07
Rent paid to Directors 0.08 0.04
Commission paid to Directors 0.26 —
Loan, Advance/Deposit outstanding at the end of the year - Deposit 0.40 0.40

Rs. Crore

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

24. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Earnings per share (EPS) calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-20) issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Particulars 2006–07 2005–06

Profit After Tax but before Extra-ordinary items (Rs. Crore) 193.28 123.25
Dividend (including tax on dividend) on Preference Shares (Rs. Crore) Nil 7.73
Net Profit before Extra-ordinary items available for
Equity Shareholders (Rs. Crore) 193.28 115.52
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs. 2/- each 119156300 119156300
Basic & Diluted EPS before Extra Ordinary items (Rs.) 16.22 9.69

Profit After Tax and after Extra-ordinary items 187.80 115.52
available for Equity Shareholders (Rs. Crore)

Basic & Diluted EPS after Extra-ordinary items (Rs.) 15.76 9.69

25. Disclosure as required by AS – 28 (Impairment of Assets):

In terms of Accounting Standard 28 (AS-28) there was no impairment loss on assets during the year under report.

26. Disclosure as required by AS-29 (Contingent Liabilities and Provisions): Rs. Crore

Particulars Warranty Obligation under
 counter guarantees

2006-07 2005-06 2006-07 2005-06

Opening Balance (as on 1st  April) 17.00 6.52 — —

Transferred on amalgamation — 2.49 — —

Additions during the year 13.91 15.43 5.48 —

Utilisation during the year 7.74 3.52 — —

Reversals during the year 6.16 3.92 — —

Closing Balance (31st March) 17.01 17.00 5.48 —

27. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this year’s classification.
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28. Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

I. Registration Details

Registration No. : 022787  State Code : 11

Balance Sheet Date : 31st March, 2007

II. Capital raised during the Year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue : Nil Rights Issue : Nil

Bonus Issue : Nil Private Placement (including share premium)  :  Nil

III. Position of Mobilisation & Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Total Liabilities : 16766604 Total Assets : 16766604

Sources of Funds

Paid up Capital : 238313 Reserves & Surplus : 5553564

Secured Loans : Nil Unsecured Loans : Nil

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets : 1695564 Investments : 5776111

Net Current Assets : (1576874) Misc. Expenditure : 1005

Accumulated Losses : Nil

IV. Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnover : 22100264 Total Expenditure : 19194857

Profit Before Tax / Loss (-) : 2905407 Profit After Tax / Loss (-) : 1878007

Earnings Per Share in Rs. : 15.76

V. Generic Names of three Principal Products / Services of the Company

(As per monetary terms)

Item Code no. (ITC Code) : 8402.10

Product Description : Steam or other Vapour Generating Boilers

Item Code no. (ITC Code) : Not Applicable

Product Description : Power Plant.

Item Code no. (ITC Code) : 8421.10

Product Description : Purifying Machinery for Liquid or Gases.

As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Rs. Crore

2006-07 2005-06
A Cash flow from Operating Activities

Net profit before tax 290.54 192.53

Add Adjustments for

Depreciation 18.76 15.21

Amortisation of deferred revenue expenses 0.10 0.51

Net Provision for Doubtful Debts 1.62 0.34

Interest (expense) 1.30 0.94

Lease rentals paid 0.00 0.19

Leave Encashment Provision 4.79 1.25

Diminution Provision for Long term Investments 17.29 —

Less Adjustments for

Interest / Dividend / Brokerage Income (34.74) (11.73)

Profit/Loss on sale of Investment (1.25) (2.08)

Profit/Loss on sale of assets 0.86 0.51

Diminution Provision for Long Term Investments written back (1.00) (0.79)

Operating profit before working capital changes 298.27 196.89

Adjustments for

Trade and other receivables 106.28 56.70

Inventories (81.50) (20.45)

Trade payables 164.94 17.77

Contracts in Progress (66.74) 24.02

Cash generated from operations (before Extra Ordinary Items) 421.24 274.92

Adjustment for Extra Ordinary Items

Provision for obligation under Counter Guarantees 5.48

Cash generated from operations 426.72 274.92

Direct taxes paid (102.47) (66.12)

Net cash from operating activities 324.25 208.81

B Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (Net) (50.24) (25.36)

Advance for Capital Expenditure (10.03) (0.01)

Investments in Subsidiaries / Group Companies (6.37) (8.49)

Purchase of other Investments (2174.20) (1087.63)

Proceeds from sale of Investments 2001.39 1011.25

Advance to Subsidiaries 0.23 (1.17)

Interest / Dividend / Brokerage received 34.86 11.63

Net cash from Investing activities (204.36) (99.78)
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As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007

Rs. Crore

2006-07 2005-06
C Cash flow from Financing Activities

Redemption of Preference Shares (including tax thereon) (0.05) (54.19)

Lease rentals paid (0.00) (0.19)

Interest paid (1.30) (0.94)

Dividend paid and Tax thereon (92.29) (36.95)

Net cash from Financing activities (93.65) (92.28)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash & cash equivalents 26.25 16.75

Opening cash & bank balances 36.11 11.15

Opening Cash & bank Balances of Amalagamated entities 0.11 8.21

Closing cash & bank balances 62.47 36.11

Note: Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this year’s classification.
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Thermax Surface Coatings Ltd. 100% Rs. -  (0.02)  2.06  (0.82)

Thermax Engineering Construction Co. Ltd. 100% Rs. 0.60  1.25  2.73 2.20

Thermax Instrumentation Ltd. 100% Rs. - 3.11  (4.88)  (4.27)

Thermax International Ltd. (Mauritius) 100% USD -  (0.23)  -  (0.04)

Thermax Europe Ltd. (U.K.) 100% GBP -  0.01  -  0.02

Thermax Hong Kong Ltd. (Hong Kong) 100% Hong Kong -  (0.22)  -  (0.36)

Dollar

Thermax do Brasil-Energia e 100% Brazilian -  (0.01)  -  (0.06)

Equipamentos Ltda (Brazil) Real

Thermax Inc. (U.S.A.) * 100% USD -  (0.02)  -  0.05

* This company is subsidary of Thermax International Ltd. (Mauritius) and hence step-down subsidary of the Company.
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For Financial Year of the
Subsidiary

For the previous Financial
Years of the Subsidiary

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 1956
(Relating to the subsidiary companies for their financial year ending March 31, 2007)

(Amount in crore)

Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chairperson Managing Director

Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Executive Vice President Company Secretary
& Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007
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Auditors’ Report

Auditors’ report to the Board of Directors of Thermax Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Thermax
Limited and its Subsidiaries

1. We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Thermax Limited and its subsidiaries (therein referred
to as “Thermax group”) as at 31st March, 2007 the relative Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date.

2. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We did not audit the financial statement of six foreign subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs. 52.96 crore as at 31st March, 2007 and total revenues of Rs. 92.53 crore for the year then ended (before giving
effect to the consolidation adjustments). These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it related to the amounts included in respect of
subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

4. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard 21 – Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and on the basis of the separate audited financial statements of Thermax Limited and its
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements.

5. On the basis of the information and explanations given to us and on the consideration of the separate audit report of
the individual financial statements of Thermax Limited and its subsidiaries, we are of the opinion:

(a) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, gives a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs of Thermax
Group as at 31st March, 2007;

(b) the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account , gives a true and fair view of the consolidated results of operations
of Thermax Group for the year ended on that date; and

(c) the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, gives a true and fair view of the consolidated cash flow for the year
ended on that date.

For B. K. Khare & Company
Chartered Accountants

H. P. Mahajani
Place: Pune Partner
Date: May 29, 2007 (Membership no. 30168)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007
Schedule Sch. 19 As at As at

Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds :

Share Capital 1  23.83  23.83
Reserves & Surplus 2  566.12  435.57

 589.95  459.40
Loan Funds :

Secured Loans 3 8  2.17  7.00
Unsecured Loans 4 - -

 2.17  7.00
Minority Interest  -  -
Deferred Tax Liability: 5

Deferred Tax Liability  20.12  19.62
Deferred Tax Asset  (13.31)  (10.40)

 6.81  9.22
Total Funds Employed  598.93  475.62
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets: 5 3 (e)

Gross Block  292.10  252.89
Less : Depreciation  124.98  114.00
Net Block  167.12  138.89
Capital Work in Progress  11.81  5.00

Investments 6 3 (h)  574.12  396.97
Current Assets, Loans & Advances:

Inventories 7 3(i)  210.79  128.25
Contracts in Progress 3(m)(iv)  91.76  54.94
Sundry Debtors 8  399.99  241.19
Cash & Bank Balances 9  97.24  54.74
Other Current Assets 10  22.13  21.50
Loans & Advances 11  201.61  89.18

 1,023.52  589.80
Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions:
Current Liabilities 12  1,080.30  518.47
Contracts in Progress 3(m)(iv)  40.12  76.46
Provisions 13 3(l)  57.36  60.37

 1,177.78  655.30
Net Current Assets  (154.26)  (65.50)
Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent
not written off or adjusted 14 3 (j)  0.14  0.26

Total Funds Applied  598.93  475.62

Notes to Accounts 19

As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2007
Schedule Sch. 19 Year ended Year ended

Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Ref.     Rs. Crore        Rs. Crore

INCOME
Sales and Other Income 15 3 (m) 2362.64 1639.77
EXPENDITURE
Materials 16 1457.88 985.80
Personnel 17 213.89 159.89
Other Expenses 18 364.16 302.95
Excise Duty (Net) 1.84 0.73
Depreciation 3 (e) 19.50 15.98
Interest 3 (n) 1.54 1.61

2058.81 1466.94
Profit Before Tax and Extra-ordinary items 303.83 172.83
Extra-ordinary Items of Expenses

Obligations under counter guaratntees
given on behalf of ME Engineering Ltd., UK 2 & 6 5.48 —

Profit before Tax and after Extra-ordinary Items 298.35 172.83
Provision for Taxation

Current Tax 3 ( f ) (i) (101.08) (63.76)
Deferred Tax 3 ( f ) (ii) (1.24) (2.45)
Fringe Benefit Tax (2.31) (4.08)

Profit After Tax 193.72 102.53
Less : Minority Interest — —
Profit After Tax and Minority Interest 193.72 102.53
Balance carried forward from last year 98.04 55.52
Adjustment on Amalgamation 2 2.13 7.95
Add: Accumulated net deferred tax asset 3.66 0.03
Add: Balance in Minority Interest Transferred — (0.31)
Add: Adjustment on account of ME Engineering Ltd.,

UK and Tharmax Energy Performance Services Ltd. 2 15.87 —
Add: Transfer on sale of Subsidiary — (0.15)
Profit available for appropriation 313.42 165.72
Appropriations
Interim / Proposed Equity Dividend 71.49 40.51
Preference Dividend — 0.92
Tax on Dividend 11.03 12.58
General Reserve 19.20 13.52
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 211.70 98.04

313.42 165.57
Basic / Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) - Rs. 11 16.26 7.96
[Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each]
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 11,91,56,300 11,91,56,300
Notes to Accounts 19

As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2007

Sch. 19 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

37,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  75.00  75.00

 75.00  75.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up

11,91,56,300 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each, fully paid-up  23.83  23.83

 23.83  23.83
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES & SURPLUS
a. Capital Redemption Reserve

Per last Balance Sheet  50.34  2.68
Add : Transferred from General reserve on redemption  -  47.66

of 6% Redeemable Preference Shares
 50.34  50.34

b. Capital Reserve
Per last Balance Sheet  13.45  19.21
Less : Adjustment on Amalgamation 2  0.35  5.75

 13.10  13.45
c. Capital Reserve on Consolidation

Capital Reserve (on investment in Subsidiaries)  4.71  5.36
Less : Goodwill (on investment in subsidiaries) -  3.01

 4.71  2.35
d. Share Premium

Per last Balance Sheet  61.13  61.13

 61.13  61.13
e. Reserve under RBI Act

Per last Balance Sheet  -  2.95
Addition During the year  -  -
Less :Transferred on Amalgamation  -  2.95

 -  -
f. General Reserve :

Per last Balance Sheet  203.30  225.71
Less: Transferred to Capital Redemption Reserve on

redemption of 6% Redeemable Preference Shares  -  47.66
Add: Transferred from Profit & Loss a/c  19.20  13.52
Add: Transferred on Amalgamation 2  (0.35)  11.74

 222.15  203.30
g. Amalgamation Reserve

Per last Balance Sheet  4.43  7.00

Less : Adjustment on Amalgamation 2  4.43  2.57

 -  4.43
h. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 3 (d)  2.99  2.53

i. Balance in Profit & Loss A/c  211.70  98.04

 566.12  435.57
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2007

Sch. 19 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS

a. Borrowing from Banks for Working Capital 8  2.17  7.00
(including Working Capital Term Loans)

b. Other Secured Loans  -  -

 2.17  7.00

SCHEDULE 4
UNSECURED LOANS

a. Bank Loans and Overdrafts  -  -

b. Inter Corporate Deposits - -
- -

SCHEDULE 5
FIXED ASSETS
(Refer note 3 (e) of Schedule 19)

 Rs. Crore

Particulars of Asset  Gross Block  Depreciation  Net Block

Cost Adj on Additions Deductions/ Total Cost Upto Adj on Deductions/ Provisions Total As at As at
as at Account of During the During the as at 31-03-2006 Account of During the During the as at 31-03-2007 31-03-2006

01-04-2006 ME,(UK) & year year 31-03-2007 ME,(UK) & year year 31-03-2007
TEPS TEPS

TANGIBLE:

A. Land - Freehold 7.36 - 3.79 - 11.15 - - - - - 11.15 7.36

B. Land - Leasehold 3.24 - 7.98 0.03 11.19 0.24 - - 0.07 0.31 10.88 3.00

C. Building 36.64 - 6.71 - 43.35 8.88 - - 1.11 9.99 33.36 27.76

D. Plant & Machinery 128.45 - 14.17 2.58 140.04 63.96 - 1.79 7.72 69.89 70.15 64.49

E. Assets given on Lease 0.46 - - - 0.46 0.44 - 0.01 - 0.43 0.03 0.02

F. Electrical Installation 5.28 - 0.58 0.04 5.82 2.86 - 0.01 0.42 3.27 2.55 2.42

G. Furniture, Fixtures, Computers 54.54 1.11 11.79 5.56 59.66 32.57 0.77 5.53 6.48 32.75 26.91 21.97
& Office Equipment

H. Vehicles 13.19 0.13 2.49 0.70 14.85 3.32 0.10 0.29 1.85 4.78 10.07 9.87

INTANGIBLE:
A. Software 3.37 - 1.28 - 4.65 1.49 - - 1.23 2.72 1.93 1.88
B. Technical Knowhow 0.35 - 0.58 - 0.93 0.23 - - 0.61 0.84 0.09 0.12

Total 252.89 1.24 49.37 8.91 292.10 114.00 0.87 7.63 19.50 124.98 167.12 138.89

Previous Year 231.89 - 32.23 11.23 252.89 107.61 - 9.58 15.97 114.00 138.89 124.20

 Capital WIP 11.81 5.00
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2007

Sch. 19 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 6
INVESTMENTS 3(h)
A) Non Trade (Long Term)

a. Government Securities  0.00  0.00

b. Units  563.32  389.23

c. Bonds  0.63  0.63

d. Quoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)  0.10  0.13

e. Quoted Equity Shares (partly paid up)  0.06  0.06

f. Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)  0.07  0.07

g. Unquoted Preference Shares (fully paid up)  0.02  0.02

h. Equity in Subsidiary Companies (fully paid up) 2  3.55 -

i. Preference Shares in Subsidiary Companies (fully paid up) 2  7.58 -

 575.33  390.14
Provision for Diminution in value of long-term investments  11.29  0.16

(A)  564.04  389.98

B) Current Investments
a. Units  10.08  6.99

(B)  10.08  6.99

(A+B)  574.12  396.97

As at March 31, 2007 As at March 31, 2006

Cost Market Value  Cost  Market Value

Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments 574.18 583.96  395.61  400.93
Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments 11.23  -  1.52  -

SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES 3 (i)

(As valued & certified by Management)

a. Raw Material & Components  161.68  83.53

b. Work in Progress  21.43  21.25

c. Finished Goods  20.91  18.42

d. Stores, Spare Parts & Tools  6.77  5.05

 210.79  128.25
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2007

Sch. 19 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 8
SUNDRY DEBTORS
Considered good  23.28  39.55
Considered doubtful  26.37  26.74
Less: Provided for  26.37  26.74
Other Debts  376.71  201.64

399.99  241.19
SCHEDULE 9
CASH & BANK BALANCES
A. Cash in Hand  0.38  1.12
B. Bank Balances & Remittances in Transit :

With Scheduled Banks :
a. In Current Accounts  34.08  18.51
b. In Deposit Accounts  0.42  0.40
With Non-scheduled bank /Foreign Banks
a. In Current Accounts  4.63  13.27
b. In Deposit Accounts  3.17  0.70
Remittances in Transit  54.56  20.74

 97.24  54.74
SCHEDULE 10
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

a. Duty Drawback Receivable  14.70  12.48
b. Excise Recoverable  2.52  7.88
c.  Accrued Interest  0.01  0.02
d. Other Current Assets 4.90  1.12

 22.13  21.50
SCHEDULE 11
LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good :

a. Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind  115.58  48.53
b. Advances for Capital Expenditure  10.81  0.53
c. Advances to Staff & Workers  7.07  7.05
d. Balance in Central Excise & Customs Accounts  26.47  4.12
e. Sundry Deposits  10.47  7.63
f. Advance Payment of Income Tax  31.06  22.18
g. Advance Payment of Fringe Benefit Tax  0.07  (0.87)
h. Others  0.08  0.01

 201.61  89.18
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2007

Sch. 19 As at As at
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE 12
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Acceptances  14.89  11.21
b. Customer Advances  660.67  259.97
c. Sundry Creditors  311.70  165.39
d. Other Liabilities  91.61  80.60
e. Trade Deposits  1.43  1.31

 1,080.30  518.47
SCHEDULE 13
PROVISIONS 3 (l)
a. Proposed Equity Dividend  30.98  40.51
b. Tax on Dividend  5.27  5.77
c. Provision for Employee Retirement & Other Benefits 3 (k)  15.22  13.68
d. Provision for Contingency  0.41  0.41
e. Provision for obligation under counter guarantees 6  5.48  -

 57.36  60.37

SCHEDULE 14
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE 3(j)
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)

Technical Know-how
Per last Balance Sheet  0.26  0.71
Add : Incurred during the year  -  0.07

 0.26  0.78
Less : Written off during the year  0.12  0.52

Technical Know-how  0.14  0.26
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for
the year ended March 31, 2007

Sch. 19 Year ended Year ended
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 15
SALES AND OTHER INCOME
I. Sales & Services : 3 (m)

a. India 1918.03 1310.10
Less: Excise Duty 97.95 86.28

1820.08 1223.82
Add : Closing Contracts in Progress 7.69 (20.73)
Less: Opening Contracts in Progress (20.73) (10.59)

1848.50 1213.68
b. Outside India 395.93 429.68

Adjustments on account of ME, UK 2.65 —
Add : Closing Contracts in Progress 43.93 (0.84)
Less: Opening Contracts in Progress (0.84) 37.29

438.05 391.55
c. Outside India - Trading 3.11 0.95

Total Sales & Services (I) 2289.66 1606.18

II. Other Income from Operations

a. Claims & Refunds 0.29 0.36
b. Balances earlier written off now recovered 1.11 0.59
c. Profit on Sale of Assets — 0.07
d. Commission 4.12 2.34
e. Sale of Scrap 8.14 5.50
f. Interest Income (Operations) 0.05 0.01
g. Exchange Difference (net) 3 (o) 4.89 0.63
h. Balances/Excess Provision Written Back 0.04 0.46
i. Provision for Doubtful Debt written back 0.28 0.26
j. Miscellaneous Income 18.06 9.71

Total Other Income from Operations (II) 36.98 19.92

III. Other Income From Investments

a. Dividend 3 (m)(viii) 30.50 10.60
b. Interest (on investments) 3.36 0.51
c. Profit/(Loss) on Sales of Current Investments — —
d. Profit/(Loss) on Sales of Long Term Investments 1.89 2.08
e. Provision For Diminution in value of

Investment Written Back — 0.08
f. Other Income From Investment 0.25 0.41

Total Other Income from Investment (III) 36.00 13.67

Total Income from Sales and other activities (I+II+III) 2362.64 1639.77
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for
the year ended March 31, 2007

Sch. 19 Year ended Year ended
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore
SCHEDULE 16
MATERIALS

(A) Consumption of Raw Material & Components
Opening Stock 73.16 69.67
Less : Adjustments on account of ME, UK 2 (0.19) -
Add : Purchases 1532.13 1000.65

1605.10 1070.32

Less : Closing Stock 144.91 73.16

(A) 1460.19 997.16

(B) (Increase) / Decrease in stock
Opening Stock :

Work-in-Progress 21.25 12.36
Finished Goods 18.58 16.11

39.83 28.47

Less : Closing Stock
Work-in-Progress 21.43 21.25
Finished Goods 20.71 18.58

42.14 39.83

(B) (2.31) (11.36)

(A+B) 1457.88 985.80

SCHEDULE 17
PERSONNEL

a. Salaries, Wages, Bonus, Testimonials & Allowances 186.64 137.31
b. Gratuity 3 (k) (ii) 4.83 3.52
c. Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 3 (k) (i) 13.28 9.91
d. Staff Welfare Expenses 9.14 9.16

213.89 159.89
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Schedules attached to and forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for
the year ended March 31, 2007

Sch. 19 Year ended Year ended
Note No. March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006

Ref. Rs. Crore  Rs. Crore

SCHEDULE 18
OTHER EXPENSES

a. Consumables and Tools 14.24 12.23
b. Power and Fuel 11.36 8.82
c. Drawing, Design and Technical Service Charges 22.86 19.52
d. Site Expenses and Contract Labour Charges 16.82 13.81
e. Erection, Fabrication Charges 76.92 56.53
f. Rent and Service Charges 6.47 3.94
g. Lease Rentals 0.43 0.25
h. Rates and Taxes 1.33 1.16
i. Insurance 5.03 3.67
j. Repairs and Maintenance :

Building 4.18 1.90
Plant & Machinery 5.44 4.35
Others 9.98 5.97

k. Communication 7.75 7.26
l. Travelling and Conveyance 38.28 35.09
m. Advertisement and Exhibition 2.55 2.55
n. Freight Outward 15.89 17.10
o. Commission on Sales 18.70 10.38
p. Other Selling and Distribution Expenses 18.25 17.79
q. Free of Cost Supplies and Modifications 15.43 14.07
r. Bank Charges 6.52 4.66
s. Legal and Professional Charges 25.47 25.84
t. Printing & Stationery 3.93 3.35
u. Donations 0.36 0.33
v. Bad Debts 2.19 10.43
w. Provision for Doubtful Debts (7) 2.33 1.16
x. Liquidated Damages 3(p) 4.29 8.55
y. Loss on Asset Discarded 0.87 0.51
z. Additional Sales Tax and Turnover Tax 0.93 0.53
aa. Premium on Forward Contracts 0.01 0.01
ab. Loss on Sale of Assets - 0.07
ac. Balances Written Off 0.20 0.41
ad. Miscellaneous Expenses 13.36 9.93
ae. Deferred Revenue Expenditure 3(j) 0.12 0.52
af. Diminution in Value of Long Term Investments 3(h) & 7 11.57 —
ag. Loss On Exchange Fluctuations 3(o) 0.10 0.27

364.16 302.95

SCHEDULE 19
INTEREST

Interest on : 3(n)
a. Fixed Period Loan — —
b. Others 1.54 1.61

1.54 1.61
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Accounts

SCHEDULE 19

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

1. The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) pertains to Thermax Ltd. and its nine subsidiaries of which six are
overseas subsidiaries. In the CFS, the term “Parent” refers to Thermax Ltd. and “Group” refers to the Parent along
with its subsidiaries.

2. The CFS envisage combining of financial statements of Thermax Ltd. and its following domestic and foreign
subsidiaries:

Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Company Country of % voting power held
No. Incorporation by Parent as on

March 31, 2007

1 Thermax Surface Coatings Limited India 100

2 Thermax Engineering Construction Co. Ltd India 100

3 Thermax Instrumentation Limited India 100

4 Thermax International Limited Mauritius 100

5 Thermax Europe Limited UK 100

6 Thermax Inc. USA 100

7 Thermax Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong 100

8 Thermax do Brasil Energia e Equipamentos Ltda. Brazil 100

9 Thermax (Zhejiang) Cooling & Heating Engineering Co. Ltd. China 100

During the year, Thermax Co-gen Ltd. (TCGL), Thermax Electronics Ltd. (TEL) and Winman Gas Ltd. (WGL)
have been merged with the Parent.

Also, during the year, affairs of ME Engineering Ltd., UK (ME, UK) wholly owned step down subsidiary company
of parent have been handed over to an Administrator under the local insolvency laws and Thermax Energy Performance
Services Ltd. (TEPS), a subsidiary company of parent, has been referred to voluntary winding-up and hence, the
accounts of these two companies have not been consolidated with the Parent.

During the year, Thermax (Zhejiang) Cooling & Heating Engineering Co. Ltd. has been incorporated in China as a
100% subsidiary company of the Parent.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements

Accounts of the Parent and its subsidiaries have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual
basis and comply with applicable accounting standards.

b. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Differences
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

c. Principles of Consolidation :

i) The financial statements of the Parent and its Subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis
by adding together the book value of like item of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating
intra group balance and unrealised profit / losses on intra group transaction, and are presented to the
extent possible, in the same manner as the Parent’s independent financial statements.
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ii) The excess / deficit of cost to the Parent of its investment over its portion of equity in the Subsidiary at
the respective dates on which the investment in such Subsidiary was made is recognised in CFS as
goodwill / capital reserve.

d. Foreign Currency Translation

Indian Rupee is the reporting currency for the Group. However, the local currency of overseas subsidiaries is
different from the reporting currency of the Group. All the overseas subsidiaries have been classified as non-
integral operation according to Accounting Standard 11. Therefore, in respect of overseas subsidiaries, all the
assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate prevailing at the Balance Sheet date and revenue, cost
and expenses are translated using average exchange rate prevailing during the reporting period. The resultant
translation exchange gain/loss has been disclosed as “Foreign Currency Translation Reserve” under the Reserves
& Surplus.

e. Fixed Assets – Tangible and Intangible Assets & Depreciation

i) Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost (net of refundable taxes and levies) and include any other attributable
cost for bringing the assets to working condition for their intended use.

ii) Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to fixed assets, are capitalised.

iii) Expenditure incurred on acquisition or development of goodwill, technical know how, software, patents,
research and development and such other intangibles are recognised as Intangible Asset, if it is expected
that such assets will generate sufficient future economic benefits.

iv) Exchange difference on liability relating to imported fixed assets, except in the case of overseas
subsidiaries, is adjusted in the carrying cost of the respective fixed assets.

v) Depreciation on all fixed assets is provided by the domestic companies on straight line method at the
rates and in the manner prescribed by Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. Further, no depreciation
is charged on assets sold during the year.

vi) Depreciation has been provided by overseas subsidiaries on method and at rate required / permissible by
the local laws so as to write off the assets over the useful life.

vii) Depreciation on exchange rate variance capitalized as a part of the fixed assets, is provided prospectively
over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

viii) Amount paid in respect of leasehold land is being amortised over the period of lease.

f. Taxes on Income

i) Current tax is provided on the basis of estimated tax liability, computed as per applicable tax regulations.

ii) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, in respect of deferred tax assets, on
timing differences, being the differences between taxable income and accounting income that originate
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

g. Assets Impairment

Provision for impairment loss is recognized to the extent by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value
in use is determined on the basis of the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

h. Investments

i) Investments classified as current investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.

ii) Investments classified as Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
is made to recognize a decline, other than temporary in nature, in the carrying amount of such long-term
investments.

i. Inventories

i) Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
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ii) Cost of raw materials, components, consumables, stores & spares, patterns & tools are valued at weighted
average cost.

iii) Cost of finished goods & work in progress is arrived at on the basis of weighted average cost of raw
materials and the cost of conversion thereof for bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

iv) Inventory obsolescence is provided for on the basis of standard norms.

j. Deferred Revenue Expenditure

In case of Parent Company expenditure incurred up to March 31, 2003, on research and development, technical
know-how and software, other than those capitalised as fixed asset or expensed out as revenue expenditure,
are being amortised over a period of time (maximum six years) depending upon the nature of the expenditure
and evaluation of future benefits there from.

k. Retirement and other Employee Benefits

i) Contributions to defined contribution schemes, such as approved Provident and Superannuation Funds,
are charged to Profit & Loss Statement on actual liability basis.

ii) In respect of gratuity, the Group has adopted a cash accumulation scheme with insurance companies.
Contributions to the Gratuity Fund are paid at the rate of contribution computed by such insurance
companies. Therefore, no note is taken of the difference in the amount of actuarial liability and the
balances in the fund accounts with insurance companies.

iii) Leave encashment benefit is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

iv) Liability on account of obligations under employee’s medical reimbursement scheme and leave travel
assistance scheme is provided on actual basis.

l. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

i) Provisions in respect of present obligations arising out of past events are made in the accounts when
reliable estimates can be made of the amount of the obligation.

ii) Group provides for warranty obligations on substantial completion of contracts based on technical
evaluation and past experience.

iii) Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of note to the financial statements, after careful evaluation by
the management of the facts and legal aspects of the matter involved.

m. Revenue Recognition

i) Revenue in respect of products is recognized on dispatch of goods to the customer or when they are
unconditionally appropriated to the contract.

ii) Revenue in respect of projects for construction of plants and systems, execution of which is spread over
different accounting periods is recognized on the basis of percentage of completion method.

iii) Stage of completion is determined by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work done till date
bears to the estimated total contract costs.

iv) Difference between costs incurred plus recognized profits / less recognized losses and the amount of
invoiced sale is disclosed as contract in progress.

v) Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making
estimates (some of which are of a technical nature) concerning, the percentage of completion, costs to
completion, the expected revenue from the contract and the foreseeable losses to completion.

vi) Supply of spare parts and services are accounted on ‘as billed’ basis.

vii) Revenue in respect of long-term service contracts / maintenance contracts is recognized on the basis of
stage of completion.

viii) Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive is established.
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n. Borrowing Costs

i) Borrowing costs on working capital is charged to Profit and Loss Statement in the year of incurrence.

ii) Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition of tangible fixed assets are capitalized till the
date of substantial completion of the activities necessary to prepare the relevant asset for its intended
use.

iii) Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or development of intangible assets are capitalized
till the date they are put to use.

o. Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the respective dates
of the transactions.

ii) Difference between the forward exchange rate and exchange rate prevailing at the inception of the forward
exchange contract is recognised as income or expense over the life of the contract or adjusted in the
carrying amount of fixed assets depending upon the nature of relatable transaction.

iii) Exchange difference is either adjusted in the carrying amount of imported fixed assets, except in case of
overseas subsidiaries, or dealt with in the Profit & Loss Account, depending upon the nature of transaction.

iv) Assets (other than fixed assets) and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the
closing exchange rates, or in cases covered by forward exchange contracts, at the spot exchange rate
prevailing at the inception of the forward exchange contract.

v) Revenue items of foreign branches are translated at average rate.

p. Others

Liquidated damages are charged to Profit & Loss Account, on the basis of deduction made by customers.

4. Contingent Liabilities not provided for

a) Disputed demands in respect of Excise and Customs Duty Rs. 15.65 Crore (Previous year Rs. 5.02 Crore),
Sales Tax Rs. 1.67 Crore (Previous year Rs. 1.64 Crore) and other Statutes Rs. 10.96 Crore (Previous year
Rs.11.08 Crore)

b) i) Income Tax demands disputed in appellate proceedings Rs. 22.08 Crore (Previous year Rs.26.03 Crore)

ii) References / Appeals preferred by Income Tax department in respect of which, should the ultimate
decision be unfavorable to the Group, the liability is estimated to be Rs. 21.41 Crore (Previous year
Rs.21.41 Crore)

c) Counter Guarantees given to the banks for guarantees issued by them on Group’s behalf Rs. 590 Crore (Previous
year Rs.325.18 Crore)

d) Indemnity Bonds/Corporate Guarantees given to Customs, other Government departments and various customers
Rs. 27.21 Crore (Previous year Rs.23.91 Crore)

e) Liability for unexpired export obligations Rs. 3.04 Crore (Previous year Rs.1.57 Crore)

f) Claims against Group not acknowledged as debts Rs. 0.22 Crore (Previous year Rs.0.22 Crore)

g) Bills Discounted with banks Rs. 25.58 Crore (Previous year Rs.22.24 Crore)

h) Liability in respect of partly paid shares Rs. 0.19 Crore (Previous year Rs.0.19 Crore)

i) Future Lease obligations payable on non-cancelable operating leases Rs. 2.44 Crore (Previous year Rs.2.08
Crore)

j) Saving guarantees given to the customers through Master Energy Services Agreements (MESA) for projects
completed Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs.12.21 Crore)

Please purchase PDF Split-Merge on www.verypdf.com to remove this watermark.



106

5. Deferred Taxation (Rs. Crore)

Particulars 31.3.2007 31.3.2006

Major components of deferred tax asset are:

i) Provision for Doubtful Debts 8.88 8.13
ii) Diminution in Value of Investments 0.45 —
iii) Others 4.43 1.82

 Total A 13.31 10.40

Major components of deferred tax liability are :

i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets 19.72 18.99
ii) Capital Expenditure on R & D Assets — —
iii) Others 0.40 0.63

Total B 20.12 19.62

Net deferred Assets/(Liability) (A-B) (6.81) (9.22)

Deferred tax debit for the year of Rs. 1.24 Crore (previous year debit of Rs. 2.45 Crore) has been recognised in the
Profit & Loss Account of the year.

During the year Rs. 3.66 Crore has been recognised as deferred Tax Assets and credited to Profit & Loss A/c.

6. Extra-ordinary items of expenses during the year are as follows :

Rs. 5.48 Crore being provision for possible financial obligations, as provisionally estimated by the Company, on
account of counter-guarantees given by the Company in relation to ME Engineering Ltd., UK (ME, UK).

7. Profit for the year before tax is after accounting for the following exceptional items of expenses :

i) Rs. 10.58 Crore being provision for diminution in the value of investment in the shares of ME, UK.
ii) Rs. 0.99 Crore being provision for diminution in the value of investment in the shares of TEPS.
iii) Rs. 0.78 Crore being provision for debts owed to the Parent by ME, UK.

8. Secured Loans

Borrowing for working capital (packing credits, shipping loans, cash credits & overdrafts) from banks is secured by
hypothecation of present and future stock of raw materials, consumables, spares, semi finished goods, finished
goods and book debts.

9. Segment Reporting

a) The Group has disclosed Business Segment as the primary segment. Segments have been identified by the
Management taking in to account the nature of the products, manufacturing process, customer profiles, risk
and reward parameters and other relevant factors.

The Group’s operations can be mainly classified into two primary segments, ‘Energy’ and ‘Environment’.
Composition of business segments is as follows:

Segment Products Covered

a) Energy Boilers and Heaters, Absorption Chillers/Heat Pumps, Power Plants.

b) Environment Air Pollution Control Equipments/ Systems, Water & Waste Recycle Plants,
Ion Exchange Resins & Performance Chemicals.

Segment Revenue, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities include the respective amounts
identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

The expenses, which are not directly attributable to the business segment, are shown as unallocated cost.

Assets and Liabilities that can not be allocated between the segments are shown as a part of unallocated Assets
and Liabilities respectively.
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b) Secondary segments have been identified with reference to the geographical location of external customers.
Composition of secondary segments is as follows:

   India

   Outside India

i) Information about Primary Segments

Rs. Crore

Particulars 2006-07

Energy Environment Others Total

Revenue :

Gross Revenue 1973.96 548.16 0.33 2522.45

Less : Intersegment Revenue 127.80 68.00 — 195.80

Net Revenue 1846.16 480.16 0.33 2326.65

Result :

Segment Result 260.01 65.97 (10.67) 315.31

Unallocated expenses net of unallocated income 9.94

Operating Profit 305.37

Interest expenses 1.54

Extra-ordinary items of expenses 5.48

Taxation for the year 104.63

Net Profit 193.72

Other Information :

Segment Assets 987.82 248.00 0.37 1236.19

Unallocated Corporate assets 459.69

Total Assets 1695.88

Segment Liabilities 863.65 170.71 0.50 1034.86

Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 71.08

Total Liabilities 1105.94

Capital expenditure 49.64 7.13 — 56.77

Depreciation 15.05 4.45 0.00 19.50

Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation 0.02 0.10 — 0.12
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Rs. Crore

Particulars 2005-06

Energy Environment Others Total

Revenue :

Gross Revenue 1356.60 415.56 0.16 1772.31
Less : Inter-segment Revenue 100.28 45.91 0.02 146.21
Net Revenue 1256.32 369.65 0.14 1626.10
Result :
Segment Result 148.95 43.86 (1.69) 191.12
Unallocated expenses net of unallocated income 16.66
Operating Profit 174.45
Interest expenses 1.63
Extra-ordinary items of expenses -

Taxation for the year 70.30
Net Profit 102.53
Other Information :
Segment Assets 466.93 192.15 5.18 664.25
Unallocated Corporate assets 422.18
Total Assets 1086.43
Segment Liabilities 424.38 118.52 0.90 543.80
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities 83.24
Total Liabilities 627.04
Capital expenditure 27.17 5.05 - 32.23
Depreciation 11.81 3.97 0.20 15.98
Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation 0.41 0.10 - 0.52

ii)  Information about Secondary Segments : Rs. Crore

Particulars 2006-07 2005-06

Revenue
India 1885.36 1232.94
Outside India 441.29 393.16
Total 2326.65 1626.10
Carrying amount of Segment Assets :
India 1134.77 562.98
Outside India 101.42 101.27
Additions to Fixed assets :
India 52.77 32.07
Outside India 4.00 0.16
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10. Related Party Disclosures:

Related party disclosures, as required under Accounting Standard 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, are given below:

Relationship:

i) Individuals having control or significant influence over the Group by reason of voting power, and their relatives:
Mrs. Anu Aga
Mrs. Meher Pudumjee
Mr. Pheroz Pudumjee

ii) Key Management Personnel :
Mr. P.M. Kulkarni
The following transactions were carried out during the year with Related Parties in the ordinary course of
business:
Nature of Transactions Rs. Crore

2006-07 2005-06

Rent Paid 0.08 0.04
Managerial Remuneration 1.27 0.95
Sitting Fees 0.09 0.07
Commission 0.26 —
Loan, Advance/ Deposits Outstanding at the end of the year - Deposits 0.40 0.40

11. Earnings Per Share

Earnings Per Share (EPS) calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

2006-07 2005-06

Profit After Tax but before Extra-ordinary items (Rs. Crore) 199.20 102.53
Dividend on Preference Shares, Tax on Preference dividend and
on redemption of Preference Shares (Rs. Crore) Nil 7.73
Net Profit before extra-ordinary items available for
Equity Shareholders (Rs. Crore) 199.20 94.80
Weighted average number of Equity shares of Rs. 2/- each 11,91,56,300 11,91,56,300
Basic & Diluted EPS before Extra-ordinary items (Rs.) 16.72 7.96
Profit After Tax and after Extra-ordinary items available for
Equity Shareholders (Rs. Crore) 193.72 94.80
Basic & Diluted EPS after Extra-ordinary items (Rs.) 16.26  7.96

12. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for
Rs.110.16 Crore (Previous year Rs. 1.17 Crore)

13. Foreign exchange fluctuation capitalised during the year amounted to Rs. 0.01Crore (Previous year Rs. 0.01 Crore)

14. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this year’s classification.

As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

 Rs. Crore

2006-07  2005-06

A Cash flow from Operating activities

Net profit before tax  298.35  172.83

Add Adjustments for

Depreciation  19.50  15.98

Amortisation of deferred revenue expenses  0.12  0.52

Provision for Doubtful Debts  (0.38)  1.67

Interest paid  1.54  1.61

Lease rentals Paid  0.43  0.25

Diminution in value of Investments  11.57  -

Less Adjustments for

Interest / Dividend / Brokerage (Income received)  (34.11)  (11.51)

Profit/Loss on sale of Investment  (1.89)  (2.08)

(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets  0.87  0.52

Provision for Long Term Investments-Written back  -  (0.08)

Operating profit before working capital changes  296.00  179.64

Adjustments for

Trade and Other Receivables  131.92  71.76

 Inventories  (82.72)  (24.06)

Trade Payables  185.75  3.83

Contracts in Progress  (70.54)  48.16

Cash generated from Operation (before Extra Ordinary Items & tax) 460.40 279.33

Adjustments for Extra Ordinary items

Provision for Obligation under counter guaranted 5.48 -

Cash generated from Operations (after Extra Ordinary Items before tax)  465.88  279.33

Direct taxes paid  (113.21)  (72.10)

Net cash from operating activities (after tax)  352.68  207.23
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As per our report of even date
For B. K. Khare & Co. Meher Pudumjee Prakash Kulkarni
Chartered Accountants Chairperson Managing Director

H. P. Mahajani Gopal Mahadevan Sunil Lalai
Partner Executive Vice President Company Secretary
Membership No. 30168 & Chief Financial Officer

Pune, May 29, 2007 Pune, May 29, 2007

 Rs. Crore

2006-07  2005-06

B Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets  (66.03)  (25.95)

Purchase of Investments  (2,178.99)  (1,089.71)

Proceeds from sale of Investments  2,001.39  1,011.25

Exchange Rate Fluctuation  (0.26)  2.12

Profit/Loss on Sale of Investments  1.88  2.08

Interest / Dividend / Brokerage received  34.11  11.56

Net cash from Investing activities  (207.89)  (88.66)

C Cash flow from Financing activities

Redemption of Preference Shares  (0.05)  (54.35)

Increase/(Decrease) in borrowings  0.52  0.30

Lease rentals paid  (0.43)  (0.25)

Interest paid  (1.54)  (1.61)

Dividend paid and Tax thereon  (92.42)  (35.99)

Net cash from Financing activities  (93.91)  (91.89)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash & cash equivalents  50.88  26.68

Opening cash & bank balances  54.74  28.05

Opening cash & bank balances of ME Engineering Ltd., UK and

Thermax Energy Performance Services Ltd.  (8.38) —

Closing cash & bank balances  97.24  54.74
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PARTICULARS 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 2000-01 1999-00 1998-99

Domestic Sales 2479 1735 1157 740 446 398 333 345 307 343
(excluding excise duty)

Export (including deemed export) 678 402 308 176 118 116 107 101 76 96

% to Total Sales 21% 19% 21% 19% 21% 22% 24% 23% 20% 22%

Total Sales 3157 2137 1465 916 564 514 440 445 383 439

% Growth 48% 46% 60% 62% 10% 17% -1% 16% -13% -7%

Other Income 89 73 33 25 40 39 36 32 92 42

Total Income 3246 2210 1498 941 604 552 476 477 475 481

Total Expenses 2795 1894 1289 848 516 473 422 469 411 416

Profit before Depreciation, 451 316 209 93 87 80 54 8 64 65
Interest, Extra Ordinary
Items and Tax

% to Total Income 14% 14% 14% 10% 14% 14% 11% 2% 14% 13%

Depreciation 22 19 15 9 9 10 12 12 12 10

Interest 1 1 1 1 0 1 3 4 3 5

Extra-ordinary Items of Expenses (2) 5 0 0 6 6 7 3 6 0

Profit before Tax/(Loss) 430 291 193 83 72 64 31 (10) 42 50

% to Total Income 13% 13% 13% 9% 12% 11% 6% (2%) 9% 10%

Tax 150 103 69 28 18 15 7 3 10 12

Profit after Tax/(Loss) 281 188 123 55 54 48 24 (13) 32 38

% to Total Income 9% 8% 8% 6% 9% 9% 5% (3%) 7% 8%

Gross Block 419 279 243 177 165 166 167 168 167 161

Net Block 326 170 138 102 83 81 87 99 109 112

Investments 580 578 417 316 276 240 189 158 161 113

Current Assets 1008 929 533 368 265 201 232 254 258 245

Current Liabilities 1163 1087 600 368 227 150 145 118 133 115

Net Current Assets (155) (158) (67) 0 38 51 88 136 124 130

Deffered Revenue Expenses 0 0 0 1 1 8 14 4 15 9

Capital Employed 736 579 474 402 383 356 344 393 394 355

Equity Share Capital 24 24 24 24 24 24 24* 23 23 23

Preference Share Capital $ 0 0 0 48 48 0 0 0 0 0

Reserves and Surplus 712 555 450 332 312 340 324 331 347 324

Networth 736 579 474 355 335# 356 333 350 355 339

Loan Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 43 39 17

Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio 9.68 12.60 10.64 9.01 6.80 6.33 5.07 4.50 3.51 3.91

Working Capital Turnover Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14.74 9.98 5.03 3.28 3.08 3.39

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.03 0.12 0.11 0.05

Current Ratio 0.87 0.85 0.89 1.00 1.17 1.34 1.60 2.15 1.93 2.12

Return on Capital Employed 59% 50% 41% 21% 19% 18% 10% (2%) 12% 15%

Return on Net Worth 38% 32% 24% 15% 16% 14% 7% (4%) 9% 11%

Cash Earnings Per Share (Rs.) ** 25.39 17.34 10.97 5.14 5.13 4.86 3.05 (0.13) 3.75 4.07

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) ** 23.56 15.76 9.69 4.37 4.40 4.05 2.02 (1.11) 2.71 3.22

Dividend (%) 400% 300% 170% 120% 120% 120% 50% 10% 35% 35%

Book Value Per Share (Rs.) ** 62 49 40 30 28 30 28 30 30 29

* During the year the Company had alloted 5,81,250 equity shares of face value Rs.10/- each to the Trustees of Thermax ESOP Trust for implementing
ESOP scheme in the Company.

$ Issued 6% Redeemable Preference Share (RPS) of face value Rs. 10/- each as bonus shares in the ratio of two RPS for every equity share held.
# Networth reduced consequent upon issue of 6% RPS as bonus shares.
** During FY 2005-06, Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each were sub-divided into face value of Rs. 2/- each and accordingly all the previous

years’ fiqures have been restated for the sake of comparability.

Note : Figures of previous years’ have been regrouped to conform to this year’s classification.
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Rs. Crore

THERMAX GROUP - FINANCIALS AT A GLANCE

PARTICULARS 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02

Domestic Sales 1849 1214 895 570 501 436
(excluding excise duty)

Export 441 393 352 207 198 151

% to Total Sales 19% 24% 28% 27% 28% 26%

Total Sales 2290 1606 1247 777 699 587

% Growth 43% 29% 60% 11% 19%

Other Income 73 34 34 51 42 40

Total Income 2363 1640 1281 829 741 627

Total Expenses 2038 1449 1165 721 641 562

Profit before Depreciation, Interest,
Extra-ordinary Items and Tax 325 190 117 108 100 66

% to Total Income 14% 12% 9% 13% 14% 10%

Depreciation 19 16 12 12 14 18

Interest 2 2 1 1 1 4

Extra-ordinary Items of Expenses 5 0 0 6 6 8

Profit before Tax 298 173 104 89 79 36

% to Total Income 13% 11% 8% 11% 11% 6%

Tax 105 70 37 23 20 8

Profit after Tax but before Minority Interest 194 103 67 65 59 28

Minority Interest 0 0 (1) 3 3 0

Profit after Tax & after Minority Interest 194 103 68 62 56 28

% to Total Income 8% 6% 5% 8% 8% 4%

Gross Block 292 253 232 207 215 216

Net Block 179 144 134 102 102 110

Investments 574 397 318 287 242 170

Current Assets 1024 590 536 379 270 309

Current Liabilities 1178 655 519 321 210 201

Net Current Assets (154) (66) 17 58 59 108

Deffered Revenue Expenses 0 0 1 1 8 15

Capital Employed 592 462 455 434 388 367

Equity Share Capital 24 24 24 24 24 24

Preference Share Capital $ 0 0 48 48 0 0

Reserves and Surplus 566 431 378 337 357 333

Networth 590 455 401 377 386 352

Minority Interest 0 0 0 17 13 10

Loan Funds 2 7 7 9 2 16

Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio 12.80 11.16 9.32 7.60 6.87 5.33

Working Capital Turnover Ratio 0.00 0.00 74.19 13.34 11.81 5.43

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.00 0.04

Current Ratio 0.87 0.90 1.03 1.18 1.28 1.54

Return on Capital Employed 51% 38% 23% 21% 20% 11%

Return on Net Worth 33% 23% 17% 16% 14% 8%

Cash Earnings per Share (Rs.) ** 17.89 9.30 6.46 6.11 5.89 3.86

Earnings per Share (Rs.) ** 16.26 7.96 5.46 5.07 4.67 2.32

Dividend (%) 300% 170% 120% 120% 120% 50%

Book Value per Share (Rs.) ** 49 38 34 32 32 30

$ Issued bonus 6% Redeemable Preference Share (RPS) of face value Rs. 10/- each in the ratio of two RPS for every equity share held.
** During FY 2005-06, Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each were sub-divided into face value of Rs. 2/- each and accordingly all the previous

years’ fiqures have been restated for the sake of comparability.

Note : Figures of previous years’ have been regrouped to conform to this year’s classification.
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A GLORIOUS 
MORNING

The heightened awareness 
about climate change and its 

consequences has strengthened 
the trend of investment in green 
energy and improved efficiency 
options like cogeneration and

 harnessing waste heat to generate 

steam and power. This has created 

additional demand for energy 

saving and eco-friendly equipment 

and systems. Thermax is well 

positioned to tap into these  

opportunities in energy 

and environment 

technology solutions.
                                                                             

– from the Chairperson's Message
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